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Directors’ report

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 26 December
1998,

Principal activities

The company acts as a holding company. The directors do not envisage initiating any material departure from this
activity in the foresecable future.

Results and dividend

The results of the company are shown in the profit and loss account on page 4. The directors recommend that no
dividend be paid.

Directors

The directors of the company during the year were as stated below:
GF Ginty

WYV Hanley M.B.E.

AD Janes O.B.E.
JT Yates

Directors’ interests

None of the directors had any interests in the shares of the company or any group company at the end of the
financial year.

Year 2000 compliance

The directors have considered the impact of the year 2000 problem and do not believe that the issue is significant to
the company.

Auditors

A resolution is to be proposed at the annual general meeting for the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors
of the company.

By Order of the Board
GF Ginfy .
Secretdry s
/ L Railway Street
i Ramishottom
Bury
Lancashire
BLO 9AL

28 April 1999
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss for that vear. In preparing those financial
statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements;

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 1985. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Report of the auditors to the members of TNT Newco Limited

‘We have audited the financial statements on pages 4 to 10.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described on page 2 the company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements. It 1s our
responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to
you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs at 26 December
1998 and of its profit for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985,

Kdone, heodir ZLQ/

KPMG Audit Pl 28 April 1999
Chartered Accountants

Registered Auditor
2 Cornwall Street
Birmingham
B32DL
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Profit and loss account
Jor the year ended 26 December 1998

Note Year ended 18 months ended

26 December 27 December

1998 1997

£000 £000

Interest receivable and similar income 2 3,032 4,149
Interest payable and similar charges 3 (2,879 -
Dividends received - £.473
Profit on sale of fixed asset investments 3 - 392239
Profit on erdinary activities before taxation 153 404.861
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 4 (81) 4,119
Retained profit for the financial year 9 72 408.980

During the current financial year and preceding financial period the company made no material acquisitions and had
no discontinued operations.

In the current financial year and preceding financial period there was no material difference between the results
reported in the profit and loss account and the results on an unmodified historical cost basis.

The movement on reserves is disclosed in note 9 on page 10 of these financial statements.




Balance sheet
at 26 December 1998

Fixed assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets
Due within one year
Debtors due after one year

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders’ funds

TNT Newco Limited

Directors’ report and financial statements

Note 1998
£000 £000
5 960,561
6 68,597
7 (1,373)
67,224
67,224
1,027,785
g 371,626
9 234,690
9 421,469
1,027,785

26 December [998

1997
£000 £000
960561
126,118
(58,966)
(10,856)
78,008
67,152
1,027,713
371,626
234,690
421,397
1,027.713

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 28 April 1999 and were signed on its behalf

by:

Y
JT Yates
Director




Statement of total recognised gains and losses
Jfor the year ended 26 December 1998

Profit for the financial year

Currency translation differences on foreign currency investments
Foreign exchange on hedging loans

Deferred tax on foreign exchange

TNT Newco Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
26 December 1998

Year ended 18 months ended
26 December 27 December

1998 1997
£000 £000
72 408,980
- (42.682)
- 12,155
- (3,768)
72 374,685
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Notes

{forming part of the financial statements)

Accounting Policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with applicable
Accounting Standards.

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provisions for permanent diminution in value.
Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the loss for the year and provision is made for taxation deferred because of
timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes. No provision for
deferred taxation is made if there is reasonable evidence that such deferred taxation will not be payable in the
foreseeable future.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date.

In accordance with SSAP 20, exchange gains or losses arising on the company’s interests in foreign companies, net
of any exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings which have been used to finance, or provide a
hedge against the company’s interests in foreign companies, have been taken to reserves.

Exemption from preparation of consolidated financial statements
The financial statements present information about the company as an individual company and not about its group.

The company is exempt under section 228 of the Companies Act 1985 from the obligation to prepare group
accounts and to deliver them to the Registrar of Cormpanies as the results of the company and its subsidiaries are
consolidated in TN'T Post Group NV its ultimate parent company, which is incorporated in the Netherlands.

Cash flow statemment

The company is exempt from the requirement of Financial Reporting Standard 1 (revised) to prepare a cash flow
staternent as 90 percent or more of the voting rights of the company’s shares are controlled by TNT Post Group NV.
The consolidated financial statements of TNT Post Group NV which include the company are publicly available.




TNT Newco Limited
Directors’ report and financial statements
. 26 December 1998

Notes (Continued)

2 Interest receivable and similar income
Year ended 18 months ended
26 December 27 December
1998 1997
£000 £0O0
Interest received from group companies 3,032 894
Exchange rate gains on foreign currency transactions - 3255
3,032 4,149
3 Interest payable and similar charges
Year ended [8 months ended
26 December 27 December
1998 1997
£000 £000
Exchange rate losses in foreign currency transactions 2,879 -
4 Tax on profit on ordipary activities

The current tax credit/(charge) for the year is as follows:

Year ended 18 months ended

26 December 27 December

1998 1997

£000 £O00
UK Corporation tax at 31% (1997 : 32%} 81) (1,292)
Transfer from deferred tax - 5411
(81) 4119

In the eighteen month period ended 27 December 1997 the sale of investments, which gave rise to a profit of £392,239,000, did
not result in a tax liability as the provisions of 5.17] Taxation and Chargeable Gains Act 1992 applied, and the income from
group companies of £8,473,000 did not give rise to a tax liability as the provisions of 5.208 Income and Corporation Taxcs Act
1988 applied.

In the eighteen month period ended 27 December 1997 a matching election was in place in TNT Newco Limited to defer the tax
on exchange gains and losses arising on borrowings until the disposal of the matched asset, being the investment in PSP Sub
Holdings BV. The investment in PSP Sub Holdings BV was transferred to TNT SPC Limited, a fellow subsidiary, within s.171
Taxation and Chargeable Gains Act 1992, The tax will crystallise only when the investment is sold outside the UK group.
Accordingly a provision has been made within TNT SPC Limited against the deferred tax.
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Notes (Continued)

Fixed asset investments
Shares in
Subsidiary
Companies
£000
At beginning and end of year 960,501

During the eighteen month period ended 27 December 1997, as part of the TNT group reorganisation, the company sold its
investment in PSP Sub Holdings BV to its subsidiary company TNT SPC Limited at market value which resulted in a nct profit
of £392,239,000.

The principal company in which TNT Newceo Limited has an interest is TNT SPC Limited, a holding company, incorporated in
Great Britain of which 100% of the ordinary shares are owned.

Debtors
1998 1997
£000 £000
Amounts due from group companies 68,597 126,118
Included above is £nil (/997: £78 008.000) due after one year.
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
1998 1997
£000 £000
Amounts owed to group companies - 57,618
Corporation tax 1,373 1,348
1,373 58,966
Called up share capital
1998 1997
£000 £000
Authoriseid:
500,000,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 500,000 500,000
Allorted, called up and fully paid:
371,625,727 Ordinary shares of £1 each 371,626 371,626
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Notes (Continued)

9 Reserves
Share premium Profit and
account loss account Total
£000 £000 £000
At beginning of year 234,690 421,397 656,087
Retained profit for the vear - 72 72
At end of year 234,090 421,469 656,159
16 Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
1998 1997
£000 £000
Profit for the financial year 72 408,980
Currency translation differences on foreign currency investments - (42,682)
Foreign exchange on hedging loans - 12,155
Deferred tax on foreign exchange - (3.768)
72 374,685
Issue of share capital - 385,161
72 759,846
Opening shareholders’ funds 1,027,713 207.867
Ciosing shareholders’ funds 1,027,785 1,027,713

11 Related party disclosures

The company is controlled by TNT Holdings (UK) Limited, its parent undertaking. The ultimate controlling party
is TNT Post Group NV. its ultimate parent undertaking.

The company being a subsidiary undertaking with 90 percent or more of the voting rights being controiled within
the TNT Post Group NV group is exempt from the requirement to disclose transactions with entities that are part of
this group or investees of this group qualifying as related parties.

12 Parent company

The ultimate parent company of TNT Newco Limited is TNT Post Group NV a company incorporated in the
Netherlands. Copies of the consolidated financial statements of TNT Post Group NV that include TNT Newco
Limited may be obtained from TNT Post Group Corporate Communications, PO Box [3000, 1100 KG Amsterdamn,
The Nethertands.
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This is the official 1998 annual report of TNT Post Group N.V.
A Dutch translation is also available.

In this annual report,“the company” refers to TNT Post
Group N.V.and "TPG" refers to TNT Post Group N.V.or
TNT Post Group N.Y.and its subsidiaries.

-
For additional copies of the English or Dutch repore,
please use the enclosed reply card or send a request to
annualrepori@tntpost.com. Alternatively, fax a request
to + 31 20 500 7521,

The information contained in this annual report can also
be found on TPG’s website at www.tntpost.com.

TNT Post Group N.V.
P.O.Box 13000

1100 KG Amsterdam

The Netherlands

Telephone + 31 20 500 6000
Fax + 31 20 500 7000
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year ended December 31,

key figures 1998 1998 1997
EUR NLG NLG

Revenues (millions) 7,409 16,327 15,267

Net income (millions) 372 820 694

Earnings per share 0.79 1.73 1.46

Dividend per share 0.36 0.80

Employees 101,582 94,116
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Report of the Supervisory Board :

On June 29, 1998, TPG was listed on the Amsterdam, Frankfurt, London and
New York stock exchanges. On the previous day, the mail, express and logistics
activities of Royal PTT Nederland NV (KPN) had been demerged to become
TPG. At that time, a Supervisory Board for TPG was appointed in accordance ;
with the opinion of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Supervisory
Board’s composition strives to reflect the international business environment
in which TPG operates. The profile of the Supervisory Board is available for
inspection at TPG Head Ofifice.

Since its appointment at the end of [une 1998, the Supervisory Board met

with the Board of Management on three occasions. During these meetings,
the Supervisory Board discussed with the Board of Managemenc the half-year
results and the acquisitions of Rinaldi Group (Rinaldi), GMA Verwaltungs-
gesellschaft mbH (GMA) and Financiere Jet Services 5.A. (Jet Services), as well

SR

Left to right: V.(Victor) Halberstadt , W.{Wim) Dik, ].H.M.(Jan) Hommen ¢, M.(Morris) Tabaksblat, c-ab
A(Arie) Maas.”. : -man 2B, LM .T.{James) Cochrane ¢, RW.H.{Rolf) Stomberg 2 ®, C.J.(Caen) Qort ¢

2 Remuneration

Committee member as the company's objectives and strategy and the associated risks, and
b Appaintments the mechanisms for controlling financial risks. In its last meeting of 1998,
Committee member the Supervisary Board approved TPG’s [999 budget plan.

€ Awudit Committee member
The Supervisory Board also adopted its bylaws and instituted a

Remuneration Committee, an Appointments Committee and an Audit
Committee. The Remuneration Committee discussed a management option
ptan and a personnel option plan, which were subsequencly adopted by the
Supervisory Board. The Appointments Committee met once in the falt of 1998.
The Audit Committee met twice, including a2 meeting with the auditor of the
company, in which the company's half-year results were discussed.

The Supervisory Board also adopied a rotation plan for its resignation
and reappointment. The plan calls for resigration of two members each year.
Although Messrs.WW. Dik and V. Halberstadt were just appointed Supervisory
Board members in june 1998, both gentlemen indicated they were prepared
to resign after one year, Messrs. W, Dik and V. Halberstadt are available for

reappointment.

The Supervisory Board intends to reappoint Mr.V. Halberstadt to the
Board unless the General Meeting of Shareholders recommends another person

4 1938 tne post group annual report




or submits objections te the proposed reappointment. Subject to the same
conditions, the Minister of Transport, Public Works and Water Management
intends to reappoint Mr.W. Dik. Details as to interpretation of article 2:142 (3}
of the Dutch Civil Code can be found in the enclosed agenda for the General
Meeting of Shareholders. In addition, page 81 of this report presents each
Supervisory Board member’s year of birth, present and former positions,

number of shares held, other supervisory board memberships and nationality. -
Also listed are the date and term of first appointment.

The Supervisory Board adopted the financial statements on the
recommendation of the Board of Management following the examination by
the auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers N.V. The auditor’s report can be found
on page 78. ’

bsia+adns 3y Jo 110dad |

The Supervisory Board recommends that the General Meeting of
Shareholders approve the 1998 financial statements of TPG. The
shareholders will be asked to approve separately the Board of
Management's execution of company affairs in 1998 and the supervision
exercised by the Supervisory Board, The appropriation of net income
approved by the Supervisory Board can be found on page 79.

Subject to approval of the financial statements, a dividend of NLG 0.80
(EUR 0.343) per ordinary share of NLG | par value will be paid over the 1998
financial year, An interim dividend of NLG 0.30 (EUR 0.136) has already been
paid in 1998 so that the final dividend per ordinary share will be NLG 0.50
(EUR 0.227).With the approval of the Supervisory Board and the holder of the
Special Share, the Board of Management has resolved that the shareholders may
elect to receive the dividend either in cash or in Ordinary Shares.

The Supervisory Board wishes te thank the Board of Management and all

employees of TPG for their outstanding efforcs in establishing the new company
and ensuring the satisfactory outcome of its activities in the past year.

The Supervisory Board
Amsterdam, March 22, 1999

1998 tnc post group annual reparc 5




1998 annual report

From the Chairman and CEO -

M.P. {Peter) Bakker.
A.{Ad) Scheepbouwer,
J-A.{John) Fellows,
C.M. {Carel) Paauwe,
A.C.(Anette) Bordes,

Left to right: L.T. {Bert} van Doorn,

Dear Shareholder,
Looking back on 1998, TPG has accomplished the successful positioning and listing as a new company. The financial
results are good. Mail had an exceptional year, showing an unprecedented 7.4 percent rise in operating revenues,
Express did well in Europe (9 percent growth in operating revenues), but growth outside Europe was significantly
affected by unfavourable foreign exchange rates and the economic crises in Asia, Eastern Europe and South
America. Logistics showed an excellent 18.3 percent increase in operating revenues.

From the first day of the listing to the end of 998, the price of TPG shares outperformed by 22 percent
the Amsterdam $Stock Exchange index, the AEX.All in all, in the second half of 1998, TPG created just under
NLG 5 billion of shareholder vzlue.

Looking forward, the European market in e;tpress is
currently in development terms some |0 years behind the
United States market. The advent of the single European
market and the euro are very important to our company.
We expect the euro to greatly stimulate cross-border
express traffic, further developing the European express
market to catch up with the United States express market.

From a strategic perspective, 1998 saw a significant imprevement in our position in France through the
acquisition of the joint market leader in domestic express, et Services. In line with the strategy of achieving a
waridwide position in our three business areas, we actively review acquisition and other business opportunities on
an ongoing basis.

The market: consolidation .
In the express market, both in Europe and elsewhere, the trend toward consclidation was prominent in [998.
I zhink this is likely to continue in the time to come.Apparently. TPG has set a trend with the 1996 takeover of TNT.
Other European postal operators have followed suit. Their acquisitions focus on the “generic” parcel market and
cransport-oriented logistics, whereas our strategy is to target remium services segments in express and higher
skills-based logistics for supply chain management. In a few year’s time, only a handful of major global ptayers will
remain;TPG and the other global integrators will be amaong them.

6 1998 tnt post grous annual report
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. in Logistics in particular, we see many openings in the market, as is shown by our recent announcement
concerning Tecnologistica. In our perception, logistics as an industry will grow significantly because there are many
opportunities in supply chain management. In addition, we see synergies between logistics and express which make
TPG uniquely positioned for expansion in its Logistics business area.

For the European mail market, we scrongly favour competition, but we demand cotal deregulation on a level
playing field, as soon as possible and for alt players simultanecusly. In the Dutch mail market, we expect the
regulation currently being developed to be fair and even-handed, setting forth clearly defined responsibilities for all
parties while at the same time not limiting our ability to compete effectively.

Growth: a central value
Growth is vital. [t is crucial for our company, our customers, shareholders and employees. First of all, we grow
because the business demands it. Mail and Express are scale-driven businesses. This means volume growth will lead
to lower costs per unit, to more and more frequent pick-ups and deliveries, and thus to a better service for our
customers at a lower price. We actively pursue this volume growth, and we invest to increase network capacity and
to acquire new networks.

Our customers increasingly operate internationally. They are therefore locking for companies that can offer
them services on an international or even global scale. TPG has to grow in order to continue to serve our ~
customers well.We have realized our growth in part through innovation and through the development of more :
cost-effective products and services, and this benefits customers, too. :

e

Growth is important for you as a shareholder as well. If we successfully manage to grow both revenues and
. cash flows, we will be able to attract more investors and more easily gain access to capital. Through making optimal
use of these advanrages and the capital provided, our company will create more shareholder value.
Finally, for our employees, a growing company offers better opportunities 2nd more challenges, new places,
new activities. Being part of a growing company, of a winning team, has a very stimulating effect.

The road ahead
Barely 10 years ago. we were a wholly state-owned company with activities limited to the Netherlands. Since then,
we have quadrupled in size.We are now a European-based global player.

1 greatly value the importance of our Dutch activities.¥We have been in mail since 1799, so there lie the roots
of our group. Her Majesty Queen Beatrix of the Netherlands ackndw!edged this heritage by granting PTT Post the
right to use the predicate “royal”: Royal PTT Post.

We have come a long way, adding major Express and Logistics businesses to our portfolio, and we intend to go
much further in the future. The road ahead is paved with challenges and opportunities.

I would like to thank everyone who was with us on the road in 1998 and who will beé with us in 1999 and after.
{ would like to thank you, our shareholder, for your confidence. | truse that you will join me in thanking the TPG
employees for their dedication and flexibility, the Supervisory Board for its vision and supporz, and especially our
custormers for choosing our company to provide solutions for their immediate or longer-term needs in Mail,
Express and Logistics.

Ad Scheepbouwser

1398 tnt post group 2nnual report 7
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Strategy

Mission
TPG's mission is to achieve a recognized world leadership position
through excellent service to customers in its three business areas
— Mail, Express and Logistics — based on a strong market position
in Europe. '

Objectives and strategy
Economies of scale characterize TPG's Mail and Express
businesses. A key element of its Mail and Express strategy is
improving service quality by expanding netwaork capacity and
coverage through the addition of road and air fleet, hubs, depots
and other infrastructure, as well as through technological
development of network processes and customer interfaces. -
These improvements are expected to increase the density and
efficiency of the networks, thus lowering unit costs and enabling
TPG to offer its customers collection, transport and delivery
more competitively, in more locations.

“Economies of skill” are as important to TPG's business
as economigs of scale, For example, in Mail and Express, TPG
has devglope& collecting, sorting, transporting and delivery skills
and capabilities that it has applied and will continue to apply in
expanding into new geographic markets. In Logistics, TPG has
developed specific skills, which have enabled it to expand its
customer base and will form the basis for future growth.

TPG has instituted cost management measures that have
enabled it to become a highly efficient postal operator. Cost
efficiency is essential in Mail, because there is limited potential
for increasing mail volumes in the Netherlands and traditional
mail volumes may be threatened by competition and substitute
technologies, such as fax and e-mail.

TPG continues to complement its Mail, Express and Logistics
services by offering customers value-added services.

TPG also seeks to derive maximum value from revenue
synergies among its various activities, resulting in the ability
to offer integrated services to its customers.

In line with its strategy of achieving a recognized world
leadership position in its three business areas, TPG actively*
reviews acquisition and other business opportunities on an
ongoing basis,

12

Mail strategy
TPG's ambition is to have its postal operations recognized as the
industry benchmark for quality, efficiency and customer service,
for producing the best returns in the industry and for making
optimal use of new technologies and liberalization.

The most important elements of TPG's Mail strategy are:

« Continuing to re-engineer collection, sorting, transporting and
delivery processes in the Netherlanags and to develop and
implement new technology, such as automated sorting centers.

« Developing value-added services, such as database management
and document handling, for business customers.

Utilizing the business model of the European Foundation for
Quality Management as a guideline for improving the quality
of its services, customer satisfaction, employee motivation and
business results in general.

» Offering a good pricel/quality rado for [arge international

_ volumes.

* Expanding its network geographically to attract more
international business clients.

Express strategy
TPG's objective is to be one of the leading express distribution
companies in the world, with 2 well-established presence in
Europe. TPG expects the market for express services to grow in
the coming years as businesses become increasingly international.
It also expects that coverage of more locations and the efficiency
of the services offered will become increasingly impaortant to
maintain and increase market share.

The most important elements of TPG’s Express strategy are:

-

Maintaining a strong customer focus by creating tailored express
solutions for large and mid-size customers and offering excellent
customer service by applying state-of-the-art information
technology.

* Expanding capacity. coverage and technology capabilities through
the addition of road and air fleet, hubs, depots and other
infrastructure, and through development of technology.

* Reducing costs and improving services by integrating its
international and domesti¢ distribution networks and offering
seamnless services through its air and road networks for line-haul
and delivery operations.

* Further strengthening the TNT brand to increase recognition

and appreciation in the global marketplace.

Logistics strategy
TPG’s strategy is to build leadership positions in targeted logistics
markets.

To achieve this objective, TPG is:
* Continuing to build its expertise and skills in specific industries.
= Moving into increasingly complex supply chain integration and
lead logistics supplier roles.
* Expanding geographically, taking advantage of the company’s
global reach.

Applying the experience, skills and technology systems
developed in other parts of TPG to improve the services
offered.

Enhancing ¢cross-servicing between Express and Logistics.
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Report of the Board of Management

Financial results _
n 1998, the operating revenues of TPG increased by 6.9%. This

i iti i ts partially offset
increase consisted of 8.3% positive business effects p ¥

by a 1.4% negative foreign exchange rate effect. Operating

expenses increased by 6.6% compared to |997. The increase in
operating income was 10.1%. Net income in 1998 was NLG 820
million and grew by 18.2% compared to (997,

amounts in millions of guilders, unless ocherwise stated

year ended December 31,

TPG in figures from 1994 1232 1998 1997 1996 * 1996 1995 1994
Total operating revenues 7409 16,327 15267 13,537 6,710 6,080 5,727
Salaries and social security contributions 2,736 6,030 5,824 5,343 2,829 2.845 2,819
Depreciation, amortization and impairments 208 . 458 415 433 178 231 161
Ocher expenses 3,803 8,38l 7.704 6,649 2,760 2,283 2,169 z
Total operating income 662 - 1,458 1,324 L112 943 721 578 §
as % of total operating revenues 89 8.9 8.7 8.2 14.1 {19 10.1 g
Plet lncome 32 820 694 582 636 541 443 é
Caplial expendjiure on property, . - g
plant and equipment 428 942 554 345 260 160 z
Average total capital 5066 ¢ 11,164 10,803 7.919 4,781 4,061 %
Roturn on average total capital {in %) ** (3.1 13.1 ¢ 12.3 1.9 5.1 14.2 §
Basl¢ net income per Ordinary Share »E
and ADS (in guilders) 0.79 . 1.73 1.46 1.34 1.14 0.93 iZ
* Pro forma, unaudited figures, including acquisition of TNT and GDEW. consolidation of TNT and GDEW. Without this acquisition, the percentage f
+* The decrease in the recurn on average total capital {in %) in 1996 is would have been 17.3 in 1996. el
€auted by an increase of total capital. mainly due to the acquisition and “C
de
Operating revenues TPG
In comparison with 1997, operating revenues increased by coneribuced 46.8%, 39.2% and 14.0%, respectively, to total
NLG 1,060 million (6.9%). In 1998 Mail, Express and Logistics operating revenues. :
amounts in millions of guilders year ended December 31,
1998 1998 1997 1996 * 1996 1995 1994
EUR ~
Operating revenues per business area -
Mail 3,523 7,763 7,231 6,767 6,393 5,901 5,636
Express 2,953 6,507 6.224 5210 381 230 146
Logisties 1,058 2,332 1,971 1,730 55 42 48
Intercompany (125) (275) {159) (170) (119) (93) (103)
Toral operating revenues 7.409 16,327 . 15,267 13,537 6,710 6,080 5,727
Total operating expenses 6,747 14,869 13,943 12,425 5,767 5,359 5,149
Total operating income 662 t,458 1,324 Lil2 943 721 578

Pro forma unaudicad figures, including acquisition of TNT and GDEW.
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Mail Express . :
amounts in millions of guilders year ende%d December 31, amounts in mitlions of guilders i year ended December 31,
mail operating revenues 1998 | 1997  express operating revenues 1998 1997

i !
Domestic Malil 3,599 1 3,363 Express Europe 5,220 4,791
Direct Mail 2,117 ‘ 1,889 Express International 1,287 1,433
International Mail 1,410 1,362 Total operating revenues 6,507 7 6,224
Post Offices and other 637 ‘ 617
Total operating revenues 7,763 ‘ 7.231 Operating revenues of Express increased by NLG 283 million

Operating revenues of Mail increased by NLG 532 million.
Excluding negative foreign exchange rate effects, the revenue
growth in 1998 amounted to NLG 544 million (7.5%) compared
with 1997. The rise of mail volumes contributed NLG 350 million
(4.8%) to this growth. Acquisitions were responsible for an
increase of NLG 102 million (}.4%) and positive price and mix
effects were responsible for an increase of NLG 58 million (0.8%).
The remaining NLG 34 million increase was mainly due to

higher rexenues of supporting units and incidental revenues.

The acquisitions consisted of an increase of the company’s share
holding in Dutch direce mail companyVSP from 50% to 55%, the
acquisition at the end of 1997 of IVA-DES, a data entry company
in the Netherlands, and the acquisition of GMA, 2 direct mail
delivery company in Germany. The development per line of
business is detailed below.

Domestic Mail operating revenues increased by NLG 236
million compared with 1997, This increase was mainly due to a
higher volume of postal items (NLG 156 million) and to positive
price and mix effects {NLG 40 million}. An increase in the number
of bulk mail items {6.3%) and letterbox mail items of companies
and consumers (3.4%) contributed to this positive volume effect.

Direct Mail operating revenues increased by NLG 228
million, mainly due te positive volume effects of NLG 139 million
and acquisition effects of NLG 102 million. The positive effects
were partially offset by NLG 13 million of other effects. The
increase in the volume of Direct Mail was related to financial
services, consumer goods, retail, publishers, lotteries and incidental
mailings.

International Mail operating revenues were NLG 48 million
above the level of 1997, This increase was primarily the result of
an increase of mail volumes (NLG 55 million} and other effects
(NLG 5 million) which was partially offset by NLG 12 million
negative foreign exchange rate effects.

Operating revenues of Post Offices and other increased
by NLG 20 million compared with 1997, This increase is due to
higher revenues of supporting units and incidental revenues.

(4.5%) in 1998 compared to 1997. The increase of NLG 429
million (9.0%) in Europe was partially offset by a decrease of
operating revenues of NLG |46 million (10.2%) in Express
International. Turbulence in the financial markets severely
impacted the 1998 operating revenue growth of Express
International. Foreign exchange rates (especially in Australia,
indonesia and Korea) negatively affected the growth of operating
revenues of Express International by NLG 177 million. In Europe,
favorable foreign exchange effects accounted for NLG {7 million
of the increase in operating revenues for Express Europe.

Excluding the effects of foreign exchange rates, the operating
revenues of Express increased in 1998 by NLG 443 million (7.1%)
compared to 1997. NLG 412 million of this increase was
attributable to Express Europe and NLG 31 million was
attributable to Express International.

In Europe, all geographic areas contributed to the increase of
NLG 412 million or 8.6% (excluding foreign exchange rate effects).
The stable economic development in TPG's main European
markets contributed to the overall growth of Express Europe. In
1998, competition in the European express market continued to
grow, which led to pricing pressure.In 1998, average weight per
consignment increased due to a mix change from documents to
express freight products. The acquisi.tions of Great Glen,a hanging
garment distributor in Ireland, and Pony Express, a city courier in
ltaly, which was acquired at the end of 1997, contributed modestly
to the increase of operating revenues in 1998 compared to 1997.

Outside Europe, growth of operating revenues of Express
activities in 1998 compared to 1997 amounted to NLG 31 million
or 2.2% (excluding foreign exchange rate effects). Growth in the
Express markets in Asia and Latin America was negatively affected
by the economic turmoil in those regions. During 1998, TPG's
Express business in the United States was restructured. Certain
unprofitable operations were terminaced and a more flexible cost
structure was created.

In 1998, Express continued 1o integrate jts international and
domestic Express businesses in Germany, Benelux, ltaly and
Australia. The focus on the integration and the related alignment
of internaticnal and domestic Express produces tempered the
growth in operating revenues. Furthermore, the move to the
European Express Center in Liége was accompanied by a decrease
of service quality in the second quarter. This tempered the
increase of operating revenues in that period,
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.mqunu in millions of guilders ] year ended December 31,
1998 i 1997

|OngtIC$ operating revenues

Total operating revenues j 2,332 i 1,971

Operating revenues from Logistics increased in 1998 by NLG 361
mitlion (8.3%) compared with 1997.1n 1998, the increase of
operating revenues was fully fuelled by organic growth. Included
in this net growth is the negative NLG 36 million impact of
unfavorable foreign exchange rate effects, primarily due to the
weakening of the Austraiian dollar and Canadian dollar against the
Dutch guilder. Excluding this effect, operating revenues increased
by NLG 397 million despite the contribution to operating
revenues of NLG 169 million by Netlog in the first half of 1997,
Netlog was sold in the second half of 1997, Adjusted for the sale
of Netlog. Logistics revenues increased by 29.4%.

The growth in operating revenues was largely generated
from increased volurmes on existing contracts together with the
full year effect of contracts begun during 1997.In particular, this
included significant contracts in the automotive industry in lealy,
the United Kingdom, Germany, France and the United States.

New business in 1998 also contributed significantly to the
grawth in operating revenues. Significant new Logistics business,
primarily in the target industries, was gained in the United
Kingdom, Australia and in the Asian region.

Operating expenses

amounts in millions of guilders year ended December 31,

with revenue growth. This increase was primarily related to more
subcontracted costs for pick-up and delivery, linehaul and hub
activities. In Logistics, the increase was primarily due to new
contracts gained and existing contracts contributing higher
volumes.

The net increase of the cost of materials, work contracted
out and other external expenses was 6.4%. This consisted of
a gross increase of these expenses by 7.9% partially offset by
a 1.5% negative change in foreign exchanges rates.

Salaries and social security contributions
Salaries and social security contributions increased by NLG 206
million (3.5%) compared to 1997, The increase was for 2.9% due
to an increase in the average number of FTEs. The remaining 0.6%
was due to other effects.

Depreciation, amortization and impairments
Depreciation, amortization and impairments increased in 1998
by NLG 43 million {10.4%) compared to 1997. This increase was
primarily due to an increase of regular depreciation charges.
The increase is related to the incredséd capital expenditures of
TPG. In 1998, the capital expeﬁditures in property, plant and
equipment amounted to NLG 942 million compared to NLG 554
million in 1997.In 1998, no impairments were recognized
compared to NLG 3 million in 1997. la 1998, the amortization
of goodwill amounted to NLG | {4 million.

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses increased in 1998 by NLG 259 mllhon
(21.7%). The increase was related to higher operating revenues
and higher consuitancy costs and additional IT and automation
expenses. Included in other operating expenses in 1998 was an

: |
operating expenses 1998 ‘ 1997 amount of NLG 400 million in net additions to the reorganization
3 provision.In 1997, the net addition to the reorganization provision
Cost of materials 757 640 amounted to NLG 447 million.
Work contracted out and other ‘ '®) . .
; eratin e
external expenses 6,173 ¢ 5,872 P g tncom
' =
. _ . ' ameunts in millions of guilders year ended December 31,
Salaries and social security 1
contributions 6,030 ; 5824  operating income 1998 | 1997
Depreciation, amortization | ;
’ ! Mail : 1,532 | 4
and impairments 458 | 418 2 1 1,438
‘ E 284 | 275
Other operating expenses 1,451 1,192 xpress j
. i Logisti 157 | 129
Total operating expenses 14,869 | 13,943 ogEe
‘ 1,973 | 1,842
Total operating expenses increased by 6.6% in 1998 compared to Amortization of goodwill 114 l 114
1997.. This increase consisteé of 8.2‘}'6 positive business effects Non-recurring costs 401 404
partially offset by 1.6% negative foreign exchange rate effects. ‘
The 6.6% increase in operating expenses was more than matched Total operating income 1,458 ! 1,324

by the 6.9% increase in operating revenues in 1998, resulting in an
increase in gross margin to 8.9% in 1998 compared to 8.7%
in 1997,

Cost of materials and work contracted out
Cost of materials, work contracted out and other external
expenses increased by NLG 418 million (6.4%) compared with
1997. The increase incurred in all the business areas. In Mail,
these revenue-related expenses increased due to higher volumes,
consaolidations of certain interests for the first time and an
increase in the number of temporary employees (hired flexible
workforce). In Express, subcontracting costs also increased in line

1998 tat post group aanual report

In 1998, Mail, Express and Logistics contributed 77.6%, 14.4%

and 8.0%, respectively, to total earnings from operations
(operational income before amortization of goodwili and
non-recurring costs). Earnings from operations increased in 1998
by NLG 131 million {7.1%) compared with [997. Mail, Express and

Logistics contributed NLG 94 million, NLG 9 million and NLG 28
million, respectively.

The increase in earnings from operations contributed by Mail

was mainly due to higher volumes in Domestic Mail and Direct Mail.
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In Express, the volume growth in consignments was in
line with the growth in operating revenues, Increased network
expenses negatively affected the profitability of Express.In
addition, minor start-up problems after the opening of the air
hub in Li¢ge caused a slight decrease in service quality during the
second quarter. This increased service recovery costs and
tempered the increase of operating revenues in that period.
Savings due to the integration of the domestic and the
international Express activities offset both negative effects.
Overall, the gross margin of Express in 1998 was on the same
tevel as 1997,

The increase in earnings from operations of Logistics was
due to the contribution from increased revenues as a result of
growth in existing contracts, new business and cost efficiencies.

In both 1998 and 1997, the amortization of goodwill
amounted to NLG | 14 million. Non-recurring costs decreased by
NLG 3 million in 1998 compared to 1997, The non-recurring costs
consist of NLG 400 million net additions to the reorganization
provision and NLG | million related to discontinued activities.

TPG’s prow;?sions for reorganization deal primarily with
Briefpost 2000, a reorganization project of Mail activities in the
MNetherlands, integration projects within Express, prombting the
new corporate identity of TNT and some essential adjustments
for IT systems and IT applications of TPG to prepare it for the
eurc and the Year 2000.

Expected savings from various reorganizations include the
effects of synergy by integration of the Mail, Express and Logistics
businesses of PTT Post and TNT for an amount of NLG 125
miflion, of which NLG 60 million was realized at the end of 1998,
As a result of Briefpost 2000, TPG expects to realize annual
savings of approximately NLG 300 million at completion of that
reorganization expected in 2000, compared to the start of the
project in 1992, At the end of 1998, a rotal of NLG 200 million
of these savings had been realized.

In 1998, operating income increased by 10.1% to NLG {,458
million compared with |997. Foreign exchange rate effects
contributed to this growth by NLG 9 million (0.7%).

Interest
In 1998, TPG had net interest expense of NLG 88 million,
compared to NLG 165 million net interest expense in 1997,
The decrease in net interest expense of NLG 77 million was
due to an increase of NLG 28 million in interest income and
a reduction of interest expense by NLG 49 million. This was
due, amang other factors, to reimbursements of external loans
and the repayment of a revolving credit facility with the proceeds
from the demerger from KPN.

Income taxes
Tax expense in the consolidated statements of income in 1998
amounted to NLG 544 million {|1997: 469}, or 39.7% (1997:40.4%)
of income before income taxes. NLG 113 million (1997:93) of the
tofal tax expenses in 1998 was paid outside the Netherlands.

The effective tax rate in 1998 was 4.7% (1997 5.4%) higher
than the statutory tax rate (35%) in the Netherlands. This
difference is due to permanent differences such as non-deducrible
amortization of goodwill, non-deductible and partly deductible
costs and higher effective income tax rates in other ¢ountries.
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Net income
TPG's net income in 1998 increased by NLG 126 million {18.2%)
to NLG 820 million. This net increase was the resule of the
increase in operating income of NLG |34 million (10.1%), partially
offset by an absolute increase in taxes,a reduction in net interest
expense and a change of NLG |2 million in the results from
minority interests. Favorable exchange rate effects contributed
to the net income growth by NLG 6 million (0.8%).

Liquidity and capital resources
At December 31, 1998, the net debt position consisted of
NLG 591 million indebtedness, offset by NLG 890 million of
cash and cash equivalents. -

At December 31, 1998, TPG’s total NLG 59| million
indebtedness consisted of NLG 260 million shore-term debt and
NLG 331 million long-term debt (including the current portion).

Short-term debt consisted of NLG 231 million drawdowns
under a short-term Australian dollar revolving credit facility and
NLG 29 million focal bank debt. The Australian dollar facility was
used to repay a 4.875% SFR 266 million debenture.

Long-term debt includes NLG 159 million in loans from
the State of the Netherlands assigned to TPG upon demerger,
NLG 195 millien of aireraft funding, NLG 58 million related to
outstanding financial leases and NLG 9 million other long-term
debt. The current portion of long-term debt, inciuded in the
balance sheet under short-term liabilities, consisted of
NLG 60 million aircraft funding and NLG { ] million financial
leases.

At December 31, 1998, TPG's total cash position amounted
to NLG 890 million,an increase of NLG 327 million compared to
year-end 1997 (NLG 563 million). This increase was attributable
to a positive cash flow from operations, which was partly offset |
by negative cash flows from investments and financing activities.

At December 31, 1998, TPG had committed credit facilities
outstanding with a number of domestic and international banks
amounting to NLG 1,189 million and uncommitted and undrawn
facilities amounting to NLG 649 million.

Capital expenditure on property,
plant and equipment

amounts in millions of guilders

capital expenditure
-on property, plant

year ended December 31,

and equipment 1998 1997
Mail 370 ¢ 240
Express 484 221
Logistics 88 ; 93
Total 942 | 554

Capital expenditure in 1998 amounted to NLG 942 million and
mainly consisted of capital expenditures in the company's
infrastructure. Specific infrastructure projects are the Briefpost
2000 project in the Netherlands (NLG 197 million), 2 new air hub
in Liége, Belgium (NLG 124 million), and three new road hubs
{NLG 78 million) in the Netherlands, ltaly and in the United
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ures were incurred relating to
Europe {NLG 155 million) and
). Further capital expenditures

il : m.dther capital expendit
6 milion (Iaé and equipment throughout

esultofthes s (NLG 67 million 5
N (|°-|°°)-P;" 1998 were made in IT (NLG 33 millien), d‘1e ng{‘acfle of post
ton in nee in% (NLG 52 million) and relating to automotive Iog!-SI:-ICS
results from".cu (NLG 4| million). The remaining NL; 195 million
BCIS Contrity \f expenditures relate to various small projects throughout
B%). ;mp:ny.

YUrCeS yaar 2000 issue
:onsisted of |- veen actively working on the Year 2000 date problem

890 million ¢ 997 3nd is addressing the millennium issue throughout its
organization. The work has been organized using a risk-
project approach. TPG's methodology consists of a clear

3 591 million jon of the scope of the problem and agreed steps to address

agre-term de‘mpliance matter. TPG expects that 90 percent of its business

Je current por millennium compliant by mid-1999.The remaining parts
~o additional months to be compliant.

million drawc .

1g credit facilii potential Year 2000 problems are not addressed, thereis a

ian dollar facilpassible failure of key {T and business systems. However,

cognized the Year 2000 issue early and moved to develop
strategy to-deal with the problem. TPG's key objective is

anture.

lion in loans frg as usual and the continuation of quality service to our
.G upon demerers — before, during and after the turn of the century.

3 million relate

on other longantingency planning and preparation for possible events
ot.included in(TPG's direct control — for example, the failure of key
-onsisted of  irs.suppliers or other third parties — is also under way.
1 miltion finasetingency plans are scheduled to be ready in

yer 1999,

—ash position ar amount of NLG 94 million was provided in the
7 mitlion comjated annual accounts of TPG forYear 2000 compliance
rease was attris at the end of 1998. This amount is expected to cover
ich was partlyNLEd future payments of IT adjustments and systems
4 financing acntire group. In 1998, the cash expenditures amounted
44 million. This amount was used for dedicated staffing,
Inmirted creditient equipment and extensive test procedures relating
| d internationa?’ 2000 project.
I mmitted andu
3.like other organizations properly addressing the Year
e, cannot guarantee that there will be an absolutely
hn prope rreansition into the new millennium. TPG, however, has
t professional and well-supported approach to identifying
vating the risks, as well as responding quickly in the event

year ended Pemg dg arise See Appendix | for an extensive

.

1998 "©
I.1999,the euro was introduced in the Netherlands
370 ‘'er member states of the European Monetary Union
is new single currency is a currency in its own right and
484 2 the currencies of each of the participating member
88 tirtroduction of the euro, which is the third phase of
~71s that bilateral conversion rates between the national
941 of participating EMU countries and the euro became
fixed on January 1, 1999.
to NLG 942 mil
s in the compan3®Ment believes that the introduction of the euro will
rojects are the gicial effect on the market risk exposures faced by TPG
197 millicn). a ¢ significanc proportion of TPG activities undertaken
d three new rox Pating EMU countries. See Appendix 2 for an extensive

aly and in the U
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Demerger
On June 28, 1998, the assets and liabilities directly related to
KPN's mail, express and logistics businesses were transferred, by
operation of law, to the company. In addition, at the date of the
demerger, certain jointly held assets and liabilities not directly
allocable to the mail, express and logistics businesses were also
transferred, by operation of law, from KPN to the company. See
explanatory note | of the consolidated financial statements,

Pursuant to the demerger, all of the mail, express and
logistics businesses and jointly held assets and liabilities
transferred to TPG were, upon consummation of the demerger,
deemed to have been for the risk and account of the company as
of january |, 1998.

Exchange rate risks
TPG operates on an international basis and generates income and
expenditures in more than 60 currencies. This creates exposures
due to the possibility of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. These fluctuations can in turn affect the results of TPG.

To reduce this exposure, TPG uses financial instruments and
derivatives. These include farward exchange contracts, currency
swaps and currency options. L

The pelicy of TPG is to hedge completely all significant risks
arising from transactions in foreign cu}'rency. Financial instruments
and derivatives are not used for purposes other than hedging
these positions. TPG does not take speculative positions.

Non-core business
Following PTT Post's January 1997 acquisition of TNT, it was
decided to dispose of TNT’s businesses not centered on the
core Mail, Express and Logistics activities. The most important
non-core activities of TNT were Ansett Worldwide Aviation
Service {AWAS), TNT Komatsu Forklift business (Forklifes), Port
of Geelong and the Sydney Monorail.

Because AWAS has been classified non-core, TPG intends to
sell its entire share in this joint venture in which TPG and The News
Corporation Limited (Newscorp) are equal partners. AWAS
trades in new and used aircraft and acquires aircraft for leasing to
third parties. Discussions with parties interested in acquiring the
business commenced in the latter part of 19%7. AWAS achieved
good financial results in 1998, Although there are several parties
interested in acquiring AYWAS, the sale is 2 complicated transaction
due to complex financing structures. if discussions for the sale of
AWAS do not come to fruition, TPG intends to pursue other
disposal options in cooperation with Newscorp.

The sale of Forklifts was completed in February, 1998.The
disposal of Port of Geelong was completed on August 7, 998, Port
of Geelong was sold to Toll Transport.In (998, Sydney Monorail
was seld to a consortium of jnvestors led by a European transport
operator, CGEATransport.The deal was ¢losed on August 10,
1998. CGEA will take over operation of the monerail. In 1998,

a few other non-core activities were.sold. After a December 1997
letter of intent was signed with Eurest to take over Catering
Services, the deal with Eurest was closed january |, 1999.

KPN Autolease was sold to ABN Amro Lease Holding N.V.

on November 2, 1998, when ABN Amro acquired all the shares

of KPN Autotease. On January 1, 1999, Waardenlogistiek was sold
to Geldnet,a 50 percent subsidiary of PTT Post.
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In January 1998, a letter of intent was signed with VNV to
transfer the shares of KPN Risicom to a venture in which TPG
would have a minority share. Negotiations with VNV are stil
pending.

Dividend policy
The Board of Management of TPG intends to pursue a dividend
policy with a pay out in a range of 30% to 35% of its profits to
reflect its expected growth and investment strategy.

In the next few years, TPG intends to pay a stable dividend
of NLG 0.80 per Ordinary Share. During this period,as TPG
expects to grow its business, the intended stable dividend of
NLG 0.80 per Ordinary Share is expected to result in a pay-out
ratio of 30% to 35%.

The dividend policy will be pursued if permicted by the
financial situation of TPG and will be subject to annual review.

TPG intends to pay an interim dividend and a final dividend.
For the interim dividend and the final dividend, TPG intends to
offer its shireholders (including its shareholders in the United
States} a choice between dividends in cash or in Ordinary
Shares (based on a conversion rate related to the closing quote
{ex-dividend) of the Ordinary Shares on the Amsterdam Stock
Exchange on a date prior to payment). In each case, at the
announcement of the choice, TPG will announce that the value
of the dividend paid in shares wiill be 2% to 5% lower than the
value of the cash dividend.

Quality
Quality Is an integral part of TPG’s policy and strategy.
To implement quality values, many TPG business units use
the business model of the European Foundation for Quality
Management {EFQM). This model surveys nine areas, which
are systematically controlled and objectively assessed.

Self-assessment takes place at all management levels, and
external assessments are also conducted. In its quest for quality
leadership, TPG applies 2 number of management principles to
foster continuous improvement:

+ Focus on results.

+ Base discussions and decisions on facts.

» Encourage personnel to improve and to seek involvernent.
« Earn internal and external recognition.

« Communicate,

TPG's managers are active in the EFQM and national quality
organizations, where they exchange ideas and information with
professionals from other quality-conscious organizations.

In 1998, TNT in the United Kingdom won the European
Quality Award. Given each year by the EFQM, the award i
widely recognized as the pinnacle of achievement in total quality
management.
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Human resources
TPG’s human resources strategy is geared toward developing
human capital to enable the company to better serve its
customers and to execute business operations and strategy
more effectively than its competitors.

TPG strives to become the industry’s preferred employer,
offering challenging and satisfying careers to its employees around
the world. Human resources efforts aim to create a work
environment where customer satisfaction is of paramount
importance to all employees.

TPG recognizes the link between employee satisfaction,
customer satisfaction and sharehalder value. lts human resources
programs are intentionally focused on encouraging employees and
managers to adopt these values. Consequently, the company has ~
gained recognition for investment in people and total quality
management, In the United Kingdom, for exaraple, TNT won
the 1998 Investors in People Key Champions Award, which is
presented.by the UK Department of Education and Employment
Investors in People organizaton, -

employees 1998 + 1997

77,795 . 75569

Average number of FTEs

Number of employees on December 31 101,582 = 94,116
Salaries and social security
contributions {NLG million) 6,030 5824

Terms and conditions
In 1998, TPG developed 2 worldwide reference framework that
addresses human resources issues related to managers and
potential managers. The framework gives due attention to
geographic and cultural diversity. A competitive international
reward and mobility process.was also launched in 1998.
These efforts will be continued and further refined in 1999,

TPG offers competitive, market-oriented employment
conditions. In erder to link employment conditions with business
and individual performance, due attention is given to setting
consistent and challenging goals that support customer and
corporate values. Reward, particularly that of managers, is linked
to individual goal achievement, as well as meeting company
profitability objectives.

After TPG's demerger from KPN, a central works council
was established te confer with the TPG Board of Management
regarding certain organizational and human resources matters in
the Netherlands.

On September 22, 1995, European Union legislation
mandated that all multinational companies within its borders
establish a2 European body for transnarional information and
consulration of employees. TPG expects to establish a European
body in 1999, which will lead to the termination of existing
agreements on transnational information and consultation within
TNT Ltd., GD Express Worldwide and TNT Automotive Logistics.

In [998,a one-time personnel option plan and 2 management
option plan were approved and options were granted. For more
information, see pages 80 and 73-74.
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The Supervisory Board and the Board of Management see

the granting of options as an essential remuneration aspect for
rmanagers. In consultation with the Supervisory Board, objective
criteria are being further developed to determine the amount of
options to be granted.

Management development
TPG encourages mobility and flexibility in its employees and
managers. It provides international career opportunities in order
to enhance individual career experiences and better serve global
customers. TPG also encourages best practice exchange.

Training and development is a cornerstone in performance
management at TPG. The company is instituting a competency-
based framework to support development of managers and
potential managers. TPG offers specialized training courses in
areas key to its business success, often in conjunction with
renowned academic organizations.

In Germany, for instance, TNT runs an academy that
offers employees and managers a range of training courses in
45 functional and {)ehavioral areas. The academy was established
in 1991, and some 2,700 employees and managers participated
in 300 courses in 1998,

In Europe and North America, a Master in Logistics program
for current and future leaders within TNT's Logistics business
improves participants’ skills in systems design, pricing and proposal
development, and logistics strategy. The course focuses on
understanding customer needs and how to meet those needs.
Students from eight countries participated in the European course
in 1998, (See photos on pages 24-27.) The first course in North
America began in February [999.

In the Netherlands, an Executive Program provides training
and development for graduates during the first three years of their
tenures, and an Executive Business Course provides development
opportunities for high-potential managers.

Environment
TPG is committed to reducing the impact of its operations on
the environment. The company guarantees carriage of goods in
compliance with all international and national regulatory safety
requirements.

TPG works to promote its commitment to the environment
throughout the organization, and invests in programs aimed at
achieving high standards of environmental care and safety. Through
these efforts, TPG strives to ensure that employees in all parts of
the company are aware of and comply with environmental
legislation.

1998 tat post graup annual report

In 1998, TPG demonstrated its commitment to
environmental care by starting to replace Boeing 7275 with
madern Airbus A300B4 freighters and flying state-of-the-arg
aircraft, such as the BAel46 Quiet Trader, which reduce the noise
impact of its operations. TNT developed more environment-
friendly packaging for its Express services in 1998,and restruc-
tured processes to reduce the number of sorting bags used.

TNT's operations in Sweden have achieved 1SO 14001
environmental accreditation. Set by the independent international
Organization for Standardization, these standards measure a
company’s achievements in reducing its impact on the
environment, preventing pollution and continually improving its
environmental efforts. TNT in the United Kingdem achieved the
accreditation in 1998, and PTT Post in the Netherfands has set
SO 14001 accreditation as 2 goal,

In Australia, TNT received the 1998 New South Wales
Transport Association's Environmental Award for its
comprehensive approach to environmental management.

b

Prospects
At constant exchange rates, the Board of Management expects the

revenue growth in 1999 to be at least in line with the 1998 ¢
development. The Board of Management expects, again at constant
exchange rates, that the growth of operating income will continue
to exceed revenue growth.The Board of Management expects

a net income growth within the 10 percent to |5 percent range

in 1999.

TPG expects capital expenditures in 1999 to be at or above
the 1998 level. TPG may incur indebtedness to finance certain
capital expenditures and business opportunities.

The number of FTEs at TPG is, while expected to be more or
less stable for TPG as a whole, expected to deacline in the Mail
business area as a result of ongoing efficiency programs and
expected to increase in the Express and Logistics business areas,
as a result of further growth of these businesses.

Safe harbor statement under the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Certain information contained in this annual report, particularly in the Prospects
section, is forward-toaking. By their nature. farward-locking statements involve
risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on circumstances
that will occur in the future, In addition to the assumptions specifically
mentioned in the above paragraphs, there are a number of other factors that
could cause actual results and developments to differ materially from those
expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors include,
but are not limited to, the actual effects of recent and future regulatory changes
and technological developments, mail and express usage levels, competition from
alternative technologies, globalization, levels of spending in major economies, the
economic climate in Southeast Asia, levels of marketing and promaotional
expenditure, actions of competitors and joint venture partners, employee costs,
future exchange and interest rates, changes in tax rates, uncertainties associated
with developments related to the Year 2000 problem and the intreduction of the
euro, unexpected costs of integrating recently acquired businesses and future
business combinations or dispositions. Continuing investment in infrastructure
{airplanes, depots and crucks) is important to maingain and increase market
share, Infrastructure investrent requires substantial lead time and involves
significant fixed ¢osts. Any mismatch between investment in infrastructure and
actual market growth (or increase in TPG's' market share) could resule in costly
excess capacity (if investment is too great) or losses of market share (if
investment is insufficient).
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Activities

TPG operates in three business areas:
Mail, Express and Logistics.

Mail

In 1998, Mail accounted for approximately.
47 percent of TPG’s operating revenues and
approximately 78 percent of its earnings from

operations.

TPG's Mail business area includes the business lines
Domestic Mail, Direct Mail, International Mail 2nd Post Offices.
Services in all these business lines are delivered under the PTT
Post brand. Some International Mail services are delivered under
the TNT brand. Mail services provided by PTT Post are subject
o Dutch, European and Universal Postal Union legislation.

{See Regulation on page 34 and Concession on page 75.)

domestic mail network

@ sorting centre

Amsterda;?r_l
&

development of domestic mail

in the netherlands 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994
Mumber of postal items delivered {in millions) 7,009 6,629 6,415 6,240 6,108
Number of delivery addresses {average in thousands) 7,195 7,096 7.001 6,900 6,800
Number of postal items delivered per delivery address 974 934 916 904 898

Domestic Mail
Through its Domestic Mail business line, TPG offers collection,
sorting, transport and distribution services for domestic mail.
Within the Netherlands, PTT Post collects, sorts and delivers
postal items, including letters, printed matter and parcels. It also
engages in activities related to philately. While most Domestic
Mail services are delivered in the Netherlands, TPG began
providing Domestic Mail services in {taly in October 1998 when
it acquired Rinaldi, the largest private postal operator in lraly.

Briefpost 2000 automation project Throughout 1998,
PTT Post continued implementing its Briefpost 2000 automation
project. Begun in 1992, Briefpost 2000 aims to increase produc-
tivity and thereby prepare PTT Post for growing competition and
to compensate for the rising cost of distributing to the 90,000
additional delivery paints in the Netherlands each year.

With a goal of increasing the propertion of mail sorted .
automatically to more than 90 percent, the Briefpost 2000 project
included replacing 12 exchange centers with six new sorting
centers and implementing purpose-built sorting machines. The
six new sorting centers began operation in 1997 and were officially
opened in November [998. The percentage of mail automatically
sorted reached 54 percent at the end of 1998. Qnce the machines
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are operating at full capacity by the end of 1999, it is expected that
the goal of automatically sorting 90 percent or more will be
achieved. (See photos on pages 16-19.)

Briefpost 2000's original objectives — set in 1992 -~ were
based on projected declines in traditional mail volumes. Contrary
te those expectations, volumes have risen each year, and machine
capacity at peak times is approaching its limits. To handle future
growth, five of the new sorting centers will be expanded in 1999
and additional sorting machines will be installed.

Approximately 8,000 staff have changed work focations and
been retrained for machine sorting. Because of these changes
and the new procedures associated with machine sorting, the
percentage of consumer mail delivered next day fell in [998 by
3 percent from its usual 95 percent. A return to the 95 percent
next-day delivery rate is expected in 1999,

While Briefpost 2000 has resulted in a need for fewer
employees, this reduction has been achieved without compulsory
redundancies. Early retirement plans, internal and external job
placement and use of temparary contracts have prevented
compulsory redundancies.
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omuic sorting has resulted in lower prices for business
¥ As of January 1, 1999.all business customers receive

rates previously reserved for those supplying pre-sorted

+ dition, businesses receive quantity discounts and
for printing the KIX code — the bar code used by the
Rachines - on their mail.
; product development Domestic Mail product
ficnts in the Netherlands in 1998 included the Business
c ?In October, PostApart, a service whereby mail is held for
ha : local post offices, was launched as an alternative to the

far consumers.

ect Mail

<t Mail business line comprises all activities involving
Rrketing Initiatives and distribution within domestic
Zwoll f addressed advertising mail and magazines (referred

- i( mall), addressed newspapers and periodicals, and

y ;cd advertising mail and newspapers. [t also includes a

{ database management and document-related services.
ing thiose services and expertise, PTT Post is able to

rangc' uf direct marketing services.In 1998, TPG
C Jts Direct Mail activities abroad when it acquired the
he nail company GMA.

r {very services Most distribution services are provided
- Y tharlands under the PTT Post brand. Some services,
¢ distribution of unaddressed advertising and

rs, are also provided through the VSP network.

*vlces are provided in Belgium, where Belgische

e dienst distributes unaddressed mail and addressed
s and periodicals.

5 1995
vth in direct marketing and business-to-business mail

x 6.240  ularly evident in the Netherlands during 1998 in
naitings from financial institutions, insurance providers

300 . - ; N .
! 6. ¢3. Companies are increasingly using direct mail to

3 904 1d awareness. PTT Post received the 1998 Hans du
——_rize for its research into the role direct mail plays in
advertising of branded products.

mad of 1999, itis e
Lercent or more services PTT Post offers a series of database
=) t services ranging from data encry and list rental
d data analysis techniques and other specialized
ives — set in 19921 services. The goal to offer a full range of direct
Eional mail volumedervices was reached through the 1998 acquisition of
L risen each 7%r_arl;'.rket:irxg Services, which added telemarketing to
L ics limits. To handdirect marketing services.

e s will be expandt’
be instalied. ronic commerce services In 1998, PTT Post
educts that facilitate electronic commerce, such as
L changed work lotich gives customers a means of identifying the sender
Because of these £533¢5. thus providing a levet of security for electronic
with machine sort
L red next day fell in
_ A return to the $entservices PTT Post provides a range of
[0 1999 ervices for managing and processing physical and
formation flows, as well as hybrid information flows
L.sl:ed in a need for the two, These services are helping PTT Post
achieved without ¢ the advent of electronic media such as e-mail and
s, internal and exuMeation.

Syncraces have pravé
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Print & Mail services Print & Mail services are hybrid

services that involve data processing, printing and enveloping
large mailings for business customers. Electronic data supplied

by customers is modified if necessary, then printed and dispatched
through the mail network. (See photos on pages 30-33.) A new
production and disaster backup center for Print & Mail was set up
in the Netherlands in 1998, and a streamlined data-handling model
was introduced.

In 1998, PTT Post linked its Netherlands Print & Mail
operation to Singapore, where data is printed and distributed by
a joint venture between TNT and Singapore Post. In the United
States, the company is setting up the same concept in the form of
Mail2000 Inc.,a joint venture with a US company. Facilities enabling
distributed printing were opened in Washington, D.C., and Santa
Ana, California, in 1998,

Print & Mail's Telepost service was introduced in 1998 to
enable small and mid-sized business customers to electronically
send batches of personalized mail to printing centers for printing,
envelope-insertion and distribution. Telepost by Internet enables
consumers to take advantage of the same service.

Mailroom services PTT Post also offers companies
in the Netherlands internal mail delivery and various forms of
document handling, including scanning and digitizing incoming mail,
physical and electronic filing, printing and copying, and website
development and maintenance. PTT Post expects that companies
will consolidate these functions in the future and wants to be in 2
position to provide the best service.

International Mail

numbers in thousands of kilograms year ¢nded December 31,

development
of international

mail volumes 1998 1997
Total International '
Mail volumes 85,116 : 82,500

TPG operates its International Mail business argund the world,
providing services faor collection, sorting and distribution

of international mail, parcels and valuables across national borders.
Services are provided under both the PTT Post and TNT brands.

The company offers a range of international services to
individual and business customers. These services include handling
all exported postal items in the reserved segment of the Dutch
market, all postal items imported to the Netherlands from foreign
postal operators,and all reserved-segrment mail imported to or
passing through the Netherfands. (See Regulation on page 34.)
International Mail services also include handling bulk mailings in
the business-to-consumer segment for a range of customers,
including publishers, catalogers, and financial service and direct
mail companies. The company contracts with these customers to
receive data or marterial, transform it inte mail through printing,
addressing or other processes, and then broker the mail to postal
operators for delivery. In addition to using its own delivery
networks, the company uses delivery agreements with national
and private postal operators,
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The international (cross-border) business mail market is
highly competitive. Deregulation has prompted national and
private postal operators to lower prices in order to compete, and
mergers and takeovers are leaving fewer providers in the market.
In addition, development of media such as e-mail and Internet
make product innovation and proper positioning essential.

TPG competes in the global mail distribution market with
other integrators and major postal operators. The price-sensitive
international business mail market demands continuous efficiency
and quality improvements. The company uses an operating
performance system to measure its consistency in meeting
delivery deadlines, and operates a dedicated sorting and
track-and-trace infrastructure throughout Asia, Europe and
North America.

Delivery time of outgoing international mail from the
Netherlands improved in 1998. The improvement was partly due
to introduction of a priority system that ensures the service level
of each item Is recognizable outside the Netherlands. independent
research shows that nearly 90 percent of mail to EU destinations
is delivered within three days.

New product development in the Netherlands,a
quality-based product portfolio was introduced on January |,
1998, This new structure defines a clear relationship between
price and quality, and classifies services as priority, standard or
economy. In the cross-border direct mail sector, a number of
services that enable businesses to promote and sell their products
by directly communicating with customers abroad were zlso
introduced in the Netherlands. Registered Mail, a value-added
service that provides a secure, traceable way of distributing items
abroad and offers compensation in case of loss or damage, was
introduced in Europe.

Post Offices
Postkantoren B.V.is a 50/50 joint venture of Postbank N.V.,
a subsidiary of ING N.V,, and PTT Post B.V. It operates a network
of offices that render services for Postbank, PTT Post and other
business partners. With 2,577 outlets, including franchises, Post-
kantoren operates the largest retail network in the Netherlands.
Postkantoren publishes its own annual report, where further
information about its operations can be found.

Regulation
In 1997, the European Community adopted a directive establishing
commen rules for the development of the internal market for
Eurcpean Union postal services and improvement of quality of
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service (the Directive) which became effective on February 10,
1998. Due 1o the implementation of the Directive, TPG anticipates
changes in the regulatory environment governing postal services.

Among the matters regulated in the Directive are the
following:
* minimum requirements for the mandatory or universal service;
* maximum scope of the monopoly or the reserved service;

« tariff principles and the transparency of accounts;

adoption of quality standards;
* harmonization of technical standards;

establishment of independent national regulatory authorities.
© Asa result of the Directive, further measures to liberalize
the postal sector (as described in the Green Paper on the .
Development of the Single EU Market for Postal Services of 1992) 5
have been postponed until the beginning of 2000. Depending on
various circumstances and developments in the postal sector of :
the European Union, such further liberalization is expected to be '
effective no sooner than January 1,2003.
The Directive requires that member states provide fora
good quality universal service to be made available to all users.
This means that postal services of a certain quality must be
offered in all terricories of a member state at prices affordable
for all users. To the extent necessary to ensure maintenance of a
universal service, member states are permitted to grant the
provider of the universal service within a territory the exclusive
right to provide postal services for domestic letters and direct’
mail and cross-border letters and direct mail weighing less than
350 grams and at a price less than five times the public tariff for
the relevant item in the first weight step, up to and including
20 grams, of the fastest standard category. At NLG 0.80, the Dutch
tariff for first class mail is the third-lowest in Europe, after Spain
and the United Kingdom. ’

Member states are to implement the Directive by February
10, 1999, except for certain provisions regarding cost accounting
and cost allocation which must be implemented by February 10,
2000. However, the Directive does not affect the competence of
European Union member states to initiate a more progressive
path for the liberalization of their national postal sectors.

At the end of 1998, a proposal to implement the Directive in
the Netherlands was sent to the Dutch parliament. It is expected
that parliament will discuss the legisfation in 1999, The Dutch
draft proposes to lower the tariff threshold to 100 grams, racher
than the 350 grams contained in the Directive.
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ExPress

in 1998 Express accounted for approximately 39 percent of TPG's operating revenues

and approximately 14 percent of its earnings from operations.

year ended December 31,

express productivity

statistics and volumes 1998 | 1997
Number of consignments

in thousands 111,046 107,241
Total tons carried 2,861,607 1 2473886
Number of depots/hubs 704 666
Number of vehicles* 14,802 14,322
Number of afrcraft* i 39 35

*+ A substantial number of vehicles and aircrait are not owned by TPG but are
{eased or subcontracred.

TPG's Express business area provides for on-demand
conveyance of documents, parcels and freight with time-definite
and day-certain defivery. The Express business area includes the
business lines Europe and International. Express services are
provided under the TNT brand.

TNT launched its new identity in 1998. The new identity was
introduced in 50 countries, and was promoted through advertising
campaigns in many of those cauntries. TNT will implement the
new identity around the world.

TNT provides local, regional and global Express services.
Glabal services are offered to and from all of the more than
200 countries in which TNT operates. Regional services are
offered in Europe and Asia.

Information technology
Information technology is an essential element in TPG’s Express
business. Since 1993, TNT has been working to develop an
efficient necwork that integrates its Express systems, depots and
operations; controls its global distribution netwark from a single
database;and streamlines business processes. The Worldwide
Data Center in Atherstane, United Kingdom, is the heart of the
centrally managed and controlled information technology function.

Global Link is TNT's global infrastructure and business
applications system thar facilitates its operations, finance and
administration, marketing and sales, and customer service.

The system runs TNT's mission-critical Express operations — from
order to delivery — at depots, hubs and gateways throughour the
world. Global Link is also central to FNT's customer interface
technology. The track-and-trace system uses data gathered
through wortdwide infrastructure and applications to track
consignments, enabling service representatives to advise
Customers an the status of consignments at any point in transit.

Cuszemers can 2lso gain direct access to TNT's databases through

R iogira,

ln addition ta Global Link, customized systems support
domestic business in individual countries. These systems provide
unique country-specific functionality, servicing critical operations
and customer needs. As TNT integrates its domestic and cross-
border businesses, the domestic systems are being bridged to
Global Link to create a seamless and transparent system.

In line with its goal to create a virtual customer service
center on the Internet, TNT enhanced customer facilicies on its
website in 1998. The www.tnt.com site now provides a single
location through which customers around the world can access
corporate, service and country-specific information. The site gives
customers the ability to produce shipping documencation for
global express services. In its major markets around the world,
TNT also launched a collection facility that ailows customers to
order a collection by entering basic shipment decails on the
website,

Significant investments in information technology used in
other areas of TNT's Express business were also made in 1998,
These included instalfation of mobile data terminals with real-time
connections to track-and-trace and booking systems in vehicles.

Europe
TNT's Express Europe business line provides local, regional and
pan-European express service, as well as express service from
Europe to the rest of the world. ™

TNT has a strong position in the European express market.
[ncreased trade between European Union member states and
intreduction of the single European currency are expected to
create an economic market comparable to that of the United
States. These developments are expected to eventuaily produce
an express market larger than North America's.

The European express market is highly competitive. TNT is
the only company offering local, regional and pan-European road
and air express services in all major European countries. In the
pan-European segment of the market, competition comes from
global providers with international networks. Competition in the
local and regional segments comes predominantly from domestic
parcel carriers. These include express operators, parcel alliances
and public postal operators.

To better serve its eustomers, TNT sec out in 1998 to
further integrace its Express Europe business and enhance its
competitiveness by increasing coverage and expanding in areas
with solid growth pocential, In Benelux, Germany and South
Europe, work continued on reorganizing legal entities, combining
infrastructures — depots, hubs, fleets and information systems —
and integrating operational, administrative, sales and support

Structures.
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Network Europe
In 1998, TNT enhanced its
integrated air and road network

[— commercial ¢connection

in Europe. April’s opening of the
TNT European Express Center
in Liége, Belgium, put TNT in

a position to achieve its growth
projections well into the 2[5t
century. The facility houses
state-of-the-art systems and is
designed to handle 1,000 tons of
freight per night, with the ability
to add capacity for future growth,
(See photos on pages 8-11.)

european express air network

In October,a new
international road hub and
national depot began operating

in Duiven, the Netherlands.
The facility is designed to
accommodate projected growth
until the ?ear 2003, with the
possibility for modular expans-
ion of capacity and office space.

Other network
improvements, including new
hubs, sorting centers and
depots, were also undertaken
throughout Europe in 1998.

Following the opening of

. b \
Il

et

the TNT European Express
Center,a number of airport
gateways were added to TNT's European air network. These
enhancements improved transit times and service reliabilicy, and
made early-morning deliveries possible in more locations.

In May, TNT announced its planned acquisition of 14 Airbus
A300B4 freighters, which will increase its capacity by 60 percent
over the next few years. September [998 saw the introduction
of the first of these new aircraft. The remaining 13 will be
introduced over the next four years. The new planes will replace
10 smaller 8727-200s.

Developments by region in Europe

Benelux Throughout 1998, TNT worked to offer
customers a seamless range of services by integrating several
former business entities. In addition to merging operational and
service aspects, TNT established a central customer service
function and a new regional office. These efforts were presented
to the public through introduction of the new TNT identity and a
large-scale advertising campaign.

France In November 1998, TPG took over Broos-Fouya,
a parcel company operating primarily in the Paris area.n
December, TPG announced its planned acquisition of Jet Services,
a French express company. Jet Services has a dense network and
an established customer base of some 35,000 customers.

Germany Guided by a"one face to the customer™ motro,
TNT worked to integrate its formerly separate German domestic
and cross-border businesses in 1998. The process affected all
aspects of the businesses, including legal entities, physical
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infrastructures, operations, sales and administration. The inte-
gration was supported by introduction of the new TNT identity
and TNT's first nationwide advertising campaign in Germany.
e

{taly TNT's customer service function was completely
redesigned to cover |2 major cities and support integration of the
cross-border and domestic businesses, Operations began at a new
automated road hub in Milan and an additional international air
gateway was established in Bologna, the air hub for domestic
wraffic. Acquisition of Spedimace, a product and part delivery
sefvice using drivers who provide technical support, and a same-
day delivery company added to TNT's product range.

North Europe TNT's business in the Scandinavian
countries of Sweden, Denmark and Norway achieved significant
growth in 1998.In Russia, TNT was able to maintain normal
business activities despite difficult economic and trading
conditions, The depot infrastructure in St. Petersburg, Russia.
and Tallin, Estoniz, was expanded.

United Kingdom 1998 saw a number of infrastructure
enhancements throughout the United Kingdom,including
groundbreaking for a state-o-f-the-art sarting cencer. Investments in
informaricn technology, including enhancements to proprietary
operating systems and installation of mobile darta terminals in all
vehicles, were also made. In addition, TNT's UK Express business
gained external recognition when it was named 1998/9% Express
Parcels Carrier of the Year by the Institute of Transport Manage-
ment and again when TNT won the European Qualicy Award.
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international
TNT's coverage extends to more than 200 countries. Cutside
Europe, TNT provides express services in Africa, Asia, Australia,
the Middle East, North America and South America. In many of
these markets, TNT’s global express services are augmented by
local and regional express services. In Australia, for instance, TNT
is one of the leading providers of time-sensitive freight delivery.

1998 saw a significant increase in flows between Asia and
Europe 2nd Asia and Australia. One rapidly growing TNT service
allows customers in Asia to send consolidated shipments into
Europe, where direct connections to the European road and air
networks speed delivery of the individual consignments. TNT also
has initiated an early-morning service between Australia and major
cities in Asia and New Zealand. This service provides guaranteed
next-day delivery before 9 am.

in North America, TNT has arrangements with domestic
express providers, which enable it to offer global services

throughout the region.

Metwork International In countries where it does not
have its own air Ii?t operations, TNT uses air lifc contracts with
commercial carriers. TNT enhanced its network capabilities
outside Europe in 1998 through agreements with major
commercial carriers. These agreements ensure TNT guaranteed
space on designated flights, and provide increased service
reliability, cost efficiency and greater delivery flexibility.

Developments by region

outside Europe

Asia TNT continued strengthening its infrastructure in
specific markets in 1998, focusing its business into the key cluster
markets of Japan, Southeast Asiz and Greater China — mainland
China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, (See photos on pages 38-41.) TNT's
hub capacity in Hong Kong tripled following its move to the new
Chek Lap Kok International Airport. In mainland China, new
depots and branches were opened in Wuxi, Xiamen, Fuzhou,
Suzhou and VWuhan.

Australia InAustralia, TNT made significant investments
in depots and equipment in |998. Sites were opened in Perth,
Adelaide, Darwin and Sydney. One of TNT’s largest parcel
distribution depots in the world was opened in Melbourne.

Facilities in rural areas throughout the country were consolidated.

Middle East, Africa In the Middle East, TNT's operation
in Saudi Arabia increased coverage to ail national destinations

1998 tacpost group anaval repore

through third-party alliances in 1998, The operation in Saudi
Arabia was the first to offer special service products in that
country, TNT's domestic express business in South Africa
continued to grow. In July, TNT began its own business in Israel,
where services were previously provided through an agent.

North America In North America, TNT focuses on
providing global express services from its three hubs in
Los Angeles, Miami and New York.In 1998, TNT restructured its
North American Express business and outsourced much of its
US pick-up and delivery functions to four domestic providers.
Airbourne Express provides delivery services for most TNT
imports into the United States, ensuring qual_ity service to
TNT's worldwide customers. The outsourcing greatly reduced
fixed costs and enabled TNT o focus on key markets. The move
also provided a broader network of delivery service points for
customers.

South America To position itself for continued growth
in Latin America, TNT established a regional structure in 1998
focused around the rapidly growing Mercosur trade zone,
The new structure is organized arouid TNT's own operations
in Chile, Brazil and Argentina and the other major industrial
countries in South America.

Express product developments
TNT's express services are tailored to meet demands in each
national market. Global express services saw a number of
developments in 1998, including repositioning of the core global
product offering. The new range of global services was faunched in
25 countries in 1998 and is expected to be implemented in
remaining countries in 1999. The customer-focused product range
includes the following door-to-door services:
+ Special Express — Tailor-made express delivery services, which in
many cases offer same-day delivery. )
* 9:00 Express — Guaranteed delivery by 9 a.m. to major cities
worldwide.
+ 12:00 Express — Guaranteed delivery by noon to major cities
worldwide. -

= Global Express — Express delivery to every location in the world.

Economy Express — Economical alternative express delivery,
with longer delivery times than Global Express.

Other 1998 product developments included enhancements
to break bulk services and Europe-wide implementation of the
Storapart storage and distribution service for large manufacturers.
TNT also launched MedPak to pharmaceutical customers in
Europe in 1998.
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ﬁLogistics}

In 1998, Logistics accounted for approximately 14 percent of TPG's operating revenues

and approximately 8 percent of its earnings from operations.

logistics statistics 1998 1997
Number of warehouses 137 85
Number of square meters (thousands) 1,546 1171

TPG's Logistics business area provides services focused on supply
chain management. These services involve managing
infrastructure, organization, processes and enabling technologies
that — across the functions of procurement, manufacturing and
distribution — ensure that the right goods, in the right quantities
and condition, are available at the right place and time. Logistics
services are delivered under the TNT brand.VWhere appropriate,
TNT subcontracts specific services, such as deliveries between
certain destinations and repair services, while retaining control
and responsibility over the subcontracted services.

TNT's Logistics services involve more than transporting
goods. They involve specialized knowledge and skills, and include
such diverse activities as stock management, order picking and
information systems management to control production and
parts supply, as well as value-added services such as assembly and
installation upon delivery, repair-returns and sequencing.

" TNT's Logistics services adhere to the quality standards of
the International Organization for Standardization, a federation of
standards bodies from some 130 countries. Initially a requirement
for manufacturers, [SO standards are now being adopted by
suppliers as well. ' '

A growing number of manufacturers across the spectrum
of industry are increasingly focusing on their core competencies
and contracting with specialized providers to meet their logistics
needs. Driven by cost containment, this trend has created a
demand for specialists wha can efficiently manage the supply chain,

While the global fogistics market is growing rapidly,in many
parts of the world the market is still in its infancy. The market
is highly fragmented, with no clear leader in any industry or
geographic area. Thare are many competitors in the market, but
few have the advanced logistics experience and geographic
coverage offered by TNT. In addition, TNT's ability to leverage its
Express networks provides a competitive edge for certain
offerings within its Logistics business.

Information technology and systems integration are
increasingly important to providing logistics services. TNT
employs sophisticated information technology, including
proprietary and customized systems. in its Logistics solutions.
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Developments by region

Benelux TNT gained a contract to eseablish a central
Et]ropean distribution center in Belgium for a leading electronics
producer. The center will include robotic operations. In the
beginning of 1998, TNT established a similar operation for a
leading paint producer in a new automated warehouse near
Amsterdam. TNT also gained a contract to provide pan-
European logistics services for a large pharmaceutical company.
On December 31, 1998, TPG took full ownership of Holland
Districare, a company that specializés’in providing logistics
services for the medical and pharmaceutical markets.

Germany TNT gained a contract with 2 compact car
manufacturer for the operation of its spare parts and accessories
warehouse, as well as a contract to serve as exclusive logistics
provider for distribution of accessories and spare parts to its
dealerships across Eurape. (See photos on pages 44-47.) TNT also
gained a contract to manage inbound logistics in Germany and
other European locations for a major American motor company.
In mid-1998, Express and Logistics activities were combined to
provide a range of services targeted to the computer and
electronics industries.

South Europe Expanding on contracts for two [talian
motorcycle manufacturers, warehousing and distribution
operations were set up in France, Spain and Germany. TNT also
extended its netwark for in-nigh{and bank services and won
warehousing and archiving contracts for leading lalian banks.

United Kingdom TNT won contracts to manage the
operations of a national distribution center for a heavy machinery
campany, to handle warehousing and national distribution of
lubricants, and to manage a regional distribution center for a large
tire producer. In July, TNT was awarded a further contrace for
distribution of national newspapers preduced by a major
publishing company. TNT's exhibition handling business was the
sole logistics provider for Farnborough Air Show in the United
Kingdam and the International Broadcasting Convention.

Asia TNT's first pan-Asia contract, which includes
operations in Hong Kong, Indonesia, Malaysia and Taiwan, was
begun in mid-1998. This contract includes warehousing,
transhipment and distribution throughout Asia for 2 leading metal
producer, In China, TNT began operations for two multinarional
companies in the fast-moving consumer goods market. New
contracts in the automotive and fast-moving consumer goods
industries were begun in Thailand. In Malaysia, TNT began
a contract for a major soft drink bottler and won a large fast-
moving consumer goods contract. On-site exhibition handling
services were provided at Expocomm in Beijing and the Singapore
Air Show,

1997 *ne mmre - .




1 Australia TNT was awarde<fl one of Australia’s largest
s\:lics contracts to provide warehouse operati-on and
“fistribution support for a major telecommumc?uons company
1998. TNT also gained several hew autemotive ccmtrac—ts‘
tacluding an assignment to manage vehicle sto!'age and dt.alwery
in New South Wales. A facility capable of storing approximately

2.000 cars was builtin Sydney to accommodate this contract.
O‘n-sil:e exhibition handling services were provided at the [998

Australian Formula One Grand Prix.

1998 tne posc graup annuzl report

North America TNT won a number of substantial
contracts in the automotive and electronics industries in the
United States and Canada in 1998. Building from a suctessful base
in Canada, TNT placed new emphasis on business development in
the United States. Emphasis of the US business development plan
was shifted from a systems orientation to the full-service logistics
model designed for the automotive industry, On-site exhibition
handling services were provided at the National Association of
Broadcasters Exhibition in Las Vegas.
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1998 financial statements
Consolidated balance sheets

after proposed appropriation of net income

ameunts in millions

at December 31, at December 31, | ‘ at December 31,
assets pro forma* 1998 1998 ‘ 1957
' , EUR NLG | NLG
fixed assets
7] Intangible assets
Goodwill 1,476 3,253 3242
|
3 Property, plant and equipment [
Land and buildings 701 1,546 ‘ 1,501
Plant and equipment 283 634 3lo
Other property, plant and equipment 403 888 = .. 945
Construction in progress 79 174 l 36
Idle property, plant and equipment i 3 i 55
(472 3245 | 2,847
1 Financial fixed assets :
lnvestments in affiliated companies 18 259 % 320
Accounts receivable from affiliated companies 20 43 % 2 T
Loans receivable 21 46 E 3!
Prepayments and accrued income 268 592 489 t
427 940 .. 842
total fixed assets 3,375 7,438 | 6931
current assets” — 2
E} Inventory 42 92 103 ‘
&} Accounts receivable 1,260 2,778 2,985
T Prepayments and accrued income 1z 257 291 ; ,
#) Cash and cash equivalents 404 890 o 563 ! ;
total current assets o 1,823 4,017 . 3,942
total assets 5,198 11,455 10,873 :

* At January 1, 1999, the euro to guilder rate was fixed at NLG 2.20371.
This rate is being used to translate the 1998 figures for illustrative purposes.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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P ey at December 31, a2t December 31, at
amounts in millions December 31,

labilities and group equity rotorma 1998 1998 1957
W group equity ,
‘shareholders’ equity (,855 4,088 2,369
Minority interests 7 ’ : 16 13
total group equity 1,862 4,104 2,382
provisions
i€ Retirement schemes 372 ’ 819 . 787
E Deferred tax liabilities 207 _ 456 - 402
il Other l 762 1,681 1,875
total provisions 1,341 2,956 3,064

long-term liabilities

KE Sctate of the Netherlands

Ordinary loan 41 S0
Subordinated loan 31 6%
BT Other liabilities 56 124 219
Accrued liabilities 91 200 12 5
S -1
. efr.e =
total long-term liabilities 219 483 33i a
(7. ]
current liabilities 3
= [1:)
5 Other liabilities 997 2,196 3,467 =
85 Accrued liabilities 779 1,716 1,629 E
R Y - 2
total current fiabilities 1,776 3,912 5,096 &
=
z
[~
i
—— . e
total liabilities and group equity 5,198 11,455 10,873 o
=
0
m

Liability capital {group equity plus the subordinated joan) was
NLG 4.173 million on December 31, 1998 (1997:2,382).




Consolidated statements of income

amounts in millions T year ended December 31
pro forma 1998 1998 ‘ 1997
EUR NLG | NLG

T8 Net sales 7314 16,118 | 15,100
TE Other operating revenues 95 209 ' 1‘67

total operating revenues 7,409 16,327 5,267 |
Cost of materials (344) (757) i (640)
Work contracted out and other external expenses {2,801) {6.173) ] {(5.872) ;
3 salaries and soclal security contributions (2,736) (6.030) 5 {(5.824) ?
28 Depreciation, amartization and impairments (208) {458) 5 (41%)
20 Other operating expenses . (658) . (1.451) l (1,192)

total operating expenses (6,747} (14,869) i (13,943)

.‘:.g‘h i
operating income 662 1,458 | 1324
|

Interest and similar income 39 85 l 57
2% |neerest and similar expenses (79) (173) ? (222)

financial income and expenses (40) (88) (165)

income before income taxes 622 1,370 | 1159 ‘
A Income taxes (247) (544) (469)
Results from investments in affiliated companies : (2)

net income before minority interests 375 ~826 688
Minority interests- (3) (6) - 6

net income 372 820 694
38 Basic net income per Ordinary Share and per ADS (in guilders)! 0.79 1.73 .46
3, Diluced net income per Ordinary Share and per ADS (in guilders)? 0.79 1.73 1.46

| Based on the average amount of 475,339,166 Ordinary Shares, including shares represented by ADS.

2 Based on 475,357,205 Ordinary Shares, including shares represented by ADS.
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Consolidated cash flow statements

a&erproposedappropﬁauon of net income

amounts in millions

pro forma 1998
EUR

1998
NLG

year ended December 31,

1997
NLG

I —
net income

372

820

694

R
Depreciation. amortization and impairments

208

458

415

—
Changes in provisions

(78)

(173)

697

—

Changes in deferred taxes

35

77

(109)

Changes in working capital:

Inventory

(5}

(t1)

Accounts receivable

(141)

i

(411)

Other current assets

7

37

(7€)

Current liabilities (excluding short-term financing)

238

526

(62)

B net cash provided
by operating activities

646

{,4237 7

1,153

Acquisition of group companies

(98)

(47)

Disposal of group companies

34

283

Acquisition of affiliated companies

18

1G]

Disposal of affiliaced companies

16

Capital expenditure on intangible assets

("

Disposals of intangible assets

25

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment

(427)

(942)

(554)

Disposals of property, plant and equipment

41

90

160

Changes in other financial fixed assets

(49)

(109)

(133)

Changes in minority interests

¥ net cash used in
tnvesting activities

(448)

(987)

(269)

Changes in shareholders’ equity

532

1,174

(636)

Long-term liabilities acquired

8l

178

Long-term liabilities repaid

(252)

(556)

(791)

Changes in short-term bank debt

(409)

(902)

651

7 net cash used in
financing activities

(48)

(106)

(763)

changes in cash and cash equivalents

150

330

121

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year

255

563

442

Exchange rate differences on cash items

(8)

(17)

12

Cash and cash equivalents from acquisition
and disposal of group companies

14

(12)

Changes in cash and cash equivalents

150

cash and cash equivalents at end
of financial year

403

330

121

890

563
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Accounting principles for consolidation,

balance sheets, determination of results .-

and cash flow statements

General _
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the provisions of Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements have been prepared in Dutch
guilders (NLG).

Consolidation principles
Group companies, which are companies that form an
organizational and economic entity with TPG and in which TPG
has a controlling interest, are fully consclidated. The minority
participating interests in group equity and in results of operations
are disclosed separately. Joint ventures in which TPG and another
party have equal control are consolidated proportionally.
Companies in which TPG acquired an interest during the course
of the financial year are consolidated in the financial statements
from the datg‘\on which the interest was acquired. Companies
that are no loAger associated with TPG are included in the
financial statements up to the date on which TPG disposed of
its incerests in them. ’

The accounting principles apply to the balance sheets and the
statements of income of TPG and to the group companies
included in the consolidation. All significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation.

Foreign currency
Revenues and expenses in foreign currencies are included in the
statements of Income at the rate on the date incurred (cash value
or at an average exchange rate for accounting purposes).If a
forward contract has been entered into, the forward exchange
rate is applied.

Accounts receivable, liabilities, cash and cash equivalents
denominated in forefgn currencies are translated into Duzch
guilders at the raté of exchange at the balance sheet date or at
the forward exchange rate if a forward contract has been entered
into, Exchange rate differences are included in the statements
of income under financial income and expenses.

Assets and liabilities of foreign companies with functional
currencies other than the Dutch guilder have been translated into
Dutch guilders at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet. The
resulting exchange rate differences are added to or charged
2gainst reserves.

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment and inventory of
direct foreign activities are translated at historical exchange rates.

Accounting principles relating

to the balance sheets

General Capital is determined on the basis of historical
cost. Assets, liabilities and group equity are included at nominal
value unless otherwise indicatad,

Intangible assets Goodwill arising from acquisitions is
valued at historical cost less amortization or at ecanomic value if
this is less on a permanent basis. Amortization expense fs
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catculated using the straight-fine method based on the estimated
useful life, ranging from five up to 40 years. in determining whether
an impairment has occurred, TPG periodically assesses the
carrying amount of goodwill by comparing the future cash flows to
the carrying vaiue of the related assets.

Property, plant and equipment- Froperty, plant and
equipment is valued at historical cost less depreciation or at

. economic value if this is less on a permanent basis. Depreciation is

caleulated using the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful life, taking into account any residual value, Land is not
depreciated. In determining whether an impairment has occurred,
TPG periodically assesses the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment by comparing the future cash flows to the carrying
value of the related assets.

Property, plant and equipme;\t that is no longer used in
operating activities is valued at the lower of book value on
December 31, before the year in which the decision is made or net
realizable value, Upon retiremenc or sale, the related historical
cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts
and any profit or loss resulting from disposal of or sale of
property, plant and equipment is included in the statements of
income. '

Affiliated companies Investments in affiliated companies
are included in the financial statements under financial fixed assets

from the date they are acquired up to the date they are disposed
of. These investments are included at net asset value in
accordance with the accounting principles of TPG.

Inventory Inventories of raw materials, supplies and
finished goods are valued at the lower of historical cost or net
realizable value. Historical cost is based on weighted average
prices.Work in process is valued at the cost of materials, the cost
of work contracted our and labor costs. Obsolescence is taken
into account.

Accounts receivable Accounts receivable are stated net
of an allowance for doubtful receivables. Accounts receivable from
affiiated companies due within one year are included in this
account.

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, bank account balances, bills of exchange and
checks {only those which can be cashed in the short term). All
highty liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less at date of purchase are considered to be cash equivalents.

Minority interests Minority interests are valued at net
asset value applying the accounting principles of TPG.

Financial instruments TPG uses derivative financial
Instruments as part of an overall risk-management strategy. These
instruments are used as a means of hedging exposure to foreign.
currency risk connected to anticipated cash flows or existing
assets and liabilities. TPG does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes,
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TPG uses foreign currency forward exchange contracts
to hedge the cash flow risk and on-balance sheet firm
commitments.

Gains and losses from foreign currency forward exchange
contracts that are hedging anticipated cash flows are deferred in
other liabilities and recognized in income, or as adjustments of
carrying amounts, when the hedged transaction occurs.

The net exposures of on-balance sheet commitments are
revalued at the prevailing spot exchange rate. The resulting gains
and losses are included in financial income and expenses.

The realized and unrealized gains and losses on the offsetting
hedges of on-balance sheet commitments resulting from changes
in the spot exchange rate are alse included in financial income
and expenses.

The related amounts due to or from counterparties are
included in other assets or other liabilities.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of the
contracts is amortized aver the life of the contract and included in

financial income 2nd expenses.

Cash flows from derivatives are recognized in the statement
of cash flows in the same category as that of the hedged irem.

If an anticipated cash flow does not occur, the foreign

currency forward exchange contract is terminated, and any results -

are recognized in financial income and expenses.

Provisions Provisions for early retirement, redundancy pay,
pension entitlements as part of reorganizations and provisions
for payments in lieu of pensions are included at discounted value.
Other provisions are recorded at nominal value.

Deferred taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising
from temporary differences between the value of assets and
liabilities for book purposes and for tax purposes are calculated
on the basis of the current rates of income tax. Deferred tax
assets are recognized if it is more likely than not that they can
be offset against taxes payable in the coming years. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities with the same term are presented netin
the balance sheet.

Accounting principles relating

to the determination of results
Revenue is recognized when services are rendered, goods are
delivered or work is completed and is calculated on the basis of
historical cost. Losses are recorded when probable.

Net sales Net sales represent the revenues from the
delivery of goeds and services invoiced to third parties, iess
discounts and taxes levied on sales,

Other operating revenues Other operating revenues
include revenues that do not arise from TPG's core businesses.

Research and development expenses Expenditures for
research and development are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation expense and amortization Depreciation
expense and amortization are calculated on the basis of the
historical cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible
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assets using the straight-line method on the basis of the estimated
useful life, and taking residual value (if any) into account.

Results from Investments in affiliated companies The
amount included in this account refers to the contribution made
to net income by companies in which TPG has a direct or indirect
interest using the equity method.

Income taxes The amount of income tax included in the
statements of income is based upon income before tax in
accordance with the prevailing regulations and rates, taking into
account permanent differences between the income for book
purposes and for tax purposes.

Accounting principles relating to the

consolidated cash flow statements
The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect
method. Cash flows in foreign currencies have been translated at
average exchange rates. Exchange rate differences affecting cash
items are shown separately in the cash flow statement. Retefpts
and payments in respect of interest and taxation on profits are
included in the cash flow from. operating activities. The cost of
acquisition of new group companies, affiliated companies and
investments, insofar as it was paid for in cash, is included in the
cash flow from investing activities. The cash assets of the newly
acquired group companies are shown separately in the cash flow
statement.

Other

The figures for previous years have been restated where necessary
to enable comparison.

Notes The numbers E in the line items of the financial
statements refer to the explanatory notes.

As the financial statements of TNT Post Group N.V.are
included in the consolidated financial statements, the corporate
statements of income are presented in an abridged form
(Article 402, Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of TNT Post Group N.V.and the consolidated
companies. A complete list of subsidiaries and affiliated companies
included in TPG's consolidated financial statements is publicly filed
at the office of the Commercial Register of the Chamber of
Commerce in Amsterdam. This list has been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of Article 379, Paragraph |

and Article 414, Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Cade.

Basis of presentation
On june 28, 1998, the demerger of the mail, express and logistics -
businesses of Koninklijke PTT Nederland NV {KPN} became
effective. At this date, all of the assets and liabilities directly
related to KPN's malil, express and logistics businesses were
transferred, by operation of law, to TNT Post Group N.V. At the
date of the demerger, certain jointly held assets and liabilities not
directly allocable to the mail, express and logistics businesses were
also trangferred by operation of law from KPN to the company.
The resuiﬁpf the demerger was that the mail, express and logistics
businesses, allocable assets and liabilities and the jointly held assets
and liabilicies referred to above, are held by the company. For
purposes of these consolidated financial statements, “TPG” refers
to the company and its subsidiaries in relation to the period after
the consummation of the demerger and to the mail, express
and logistics businesses of KPN and its subsidiaries prior to

consummation of the demerger. Pursuant to a demerger

agreement (the demerger agreement), all of the mail, express
and logistics businesses and fointly held assets and liabilities
transferred to TPG were, upon consummation of the demerger,
deemed to have been for the risk and account of the company
as of January |, [998.

The company was incorporated on December 29, 1997,
The only shareholder was KPN, holding the Founder Share. Upon
consummation of the demerger, the articles of association of the
company were amended to provide for an authorized share capital
of NLG 2,360 million, comprising of 944 million ordinary shares
{Ordinary Shares), 589,999,999 Preference Shares A. 826,000 900
Preference Shares B and one Special Share, each with a par valye
of NLG |. The KPN shareholders received shares in the company
pro rata to their existing holdings of KPN Shares, in the ratio of
one Ordinary Share in the company for every KPN share owned,
The State of the Netherlands {the State) received the-Special
Share. The Founder Share was canceled at that time. As a resule,
the shareholders had the same proportionate interest in the same
aggregate of assets and liabilities immediately before and after the
demerger. The number of Ordinary Shares outstanding
immediatély after the demerger was 475,173,350.

The consolidated ﬂnganciaﬁ! statements of TPG for the years
presented have been prepared as if the Mail, Express and Logistics
businesses had been part of TPG for all such years,and as if
TPG existed as a separate group for all years presented. Assets,
liabilities, shareholders’ equity, revenues and expenses of TPG
are stated on the basis of historical cost in accordance with the
accounting principles of TPG. The consoclidated financial
statements of prior years do not include the jointly held assets
and liabilities transferred to the company because these are not
directly allocable to the Mail, Express and Logistics businesses
and do not affect operating income or net income for those years
presented. Some of the companies in TPG have been part of tax
arrangements of KPN prior to the demerger, inter alia, for
utilization of TPG losses. In these consolidated financial ]
statements the tax position and tax expenses have been calculated
as if TPG had not been part of these tax arrangements and as if
TPG had existed as separate entity for the years presented.
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% corresponding financial statement number)
g
}:me 28. 1998, in addition to the shares of PTT Post Holding
representing the Mail, Express and Logistics businesses,
#tain jointly held assets and liabilities not directly allocable to
5 che Mait, Express and Logistics businesses were transierred, by
. hﬂon of law. from KPN to TPG. Such transfer was deemed to
: been for the risk and account of the company as of January I,
é This note discloses the effects of this transfer on the
¥ ce sheet as of January [, 1998.See also Basis of presentation.

in millions of guilders year ended December 31,

eerger effect total
fal fixed assets 2 - 239
1,180
1,419
1,248
159
12

Ztotal liabilities and
;. group equity 1,419

Fixed assets

Aamaunty in millions of guilders

tatement of changes

year ended December 31,

n |ntangib|e assets goodwill
[storical cosc 3,434
\ccumutated amortization (192)
Balance on December 31, 1997 - 3,242
hanges in 1998
126

(h
(114)

3,559
_ Adcumulated amortization (306)
Balance on December 31, 1998 3,253
-_‘—___\ 1
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Financial information related to the demerger

At the date of the demerger of the Mail, Express and Logistics
businesses, certain assets and liabilities were transferred to TPG
for a tocal value of NLG 1,248 million. This transfer consists of:

a Financial fixed assets
The shares of, and loans supplied to, KPN Autolease BV, and KPN
Risicom B.V. (NLG 239 million). ’

b Currenc assets

Current assets {accrued income and loans receivable) including
KPN Autolease B.V.and KPN Risicom B.V. (NLG 96 million) and
a receivable from KPN (NLG 1,084 million).

¢ Long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities consist of a NLG 90 million ordinary loan
from the State and a NLG 69 million subordinated loan from
the State (See note 12).

d Current liabilicies
Current liabilities related to various costs of the demerger
(NLG 12 million).

Intangible assets: NLG 3,253 million (1997: 3,242)

In 1998, NLG 126 million of goodwill arose from the acquisition
of interests in companies (1997: 44). This goodwitl was primarily
attributable to Mail acquisitions,

-~
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Eﬂ Property, plant and equipment NLG 3,245 million (1997:2,847)
Leasehold rights amounting to NLG 27 million (1997:38) are

included as part of land and buildings. Plant and equipment includes

leased assets amaounting to NLG §8 million (1997: 90).

amounts in millions of guilders, except percentages

other idle
property, construe- property,
statement of Changes in property, land and plant and plant and tion in . plantand
P'ant and €q Uipment buildings equipment equipment progress equipment total
Depreciation percentage 0-10 4-33 7-25 0 o
Historical cost 2,673 821 1,248 36 55 4,833
Accumulated depreciation, (1,172} {511) (303) (1,986)
Balance on December 31, 1997 1,501 310 945 36 55 2,847
changes in 1998:
Exel;}hge rate differences 23) (2) (43) . {2) (H (71)
Capital expenditure (34 62 390 356 942
Acquisitions 4 3 10 17
Disposals (56) 3) o) @2n (50)
Deconsolidation ‘ ‘ (56} {56)
Total capital expenditure 59 €0 291 333 m 742
Depreciation and impairments {84} {65) (195) {344)
Reclassifications and other changes 70 329 {i53) {195) (51) -0
Total changes 45 324 (57) 138 (52) 398
Historical cost  ~ 2,632 1,194 1,332 174 3 5.335
Accumulated depreciation (1,086} (560) (444) . (2,090)
Balance on December 31, 1998 },546 634 888 174 3 3,245
Historical cost refers, among other things, to the value of 1989, were valued at the then current value of NLG 406 million, :
the property, plant and equipment contributed to TPG when its which is net of accumulated depreciation of NLG 1,137 million, ;
former parent KPN was established in 1989. The calculation of
depreciation expense on those assets takes inte consideration The following table shows the balance sheet value of the -
the useful life that had already elapsed at that date. The book value  property. plant and equipment on December 31, 1998, of the i
at December 31, 1998, of assets transferred to TPG on Januvary |, segments Mail, Express and Logistics: H
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amounts in millions of guilders, except percentages

balance sheet value of property, plant and L

equipment on December 31, 1998 * mail express logistcs | total
Land and buildings 1,088 426 32,546
Plant and equipment 376 195 63 634
Other property, plant and equipment 83 731 74 : 888
Construction in progress ) g1 81 2 174
Idie property, plant and equipment 3 3

Total 1,638 1,433 174 3 3.245"
As percentage of total property, plant and equipment - 50.5 44.1 54 [00.0

* |dentifiable assets used jointly for the segments have been allocated based on estimated usage.

The assets of TPG are located as follows:

ameunts in millions of guilders i

location of property, plant and |

equipment on December 31,1998 * mail express _ logistics | total
» i
1- .
The Netherlands ' 1,549 241 1o 1,800
Rest of Europe 87 970 101 . 1,158
Australia 186 32 212
Asia 34 13 47
United States and Canada 2 3 8 ; 13
Rest of world 5 10 15
Total 1,638 1,433 174 1 3,245 G
: -y
* Identifiable assets used jointly for the segments have been allocated based on estimated usage. §
[a]
5
4 Financial fixed assets: NLG 940 million (1997: 842) el
amounts in millions of guilders 2CCOUNS g
- investments receivable hil prepayments ,.=.,
- [
statement Qf changes in in affiliated feom affiliated loans and accrued : p—
finanCiaI fixed assets companies companies receivable income total §
o
Balance on December 31,1997 320 2 31 489 842 E
s
(2
o
i 2
changes in 1998: 2
[a
i1
Exchange rate differences (18) {4) {5) (27) é_'
Acquisitions/additions (18) 298 52 143 475 ;g
=]
Disposals/decreases (16) (257} (32) (88) {(393) §
=
(De)consolidation 7 75 82 %
Dividend (26) {26)
Other ¢changes 0 (1) (22) {(13)
Toral changes (61) 4} 15 . 103 98
Balance on December 31,1998 259 43 46 592 940
The line acquisitions/additions includes a NLG 239 million December 31, 1998, is an amount of NLG 457 million of deferred
transfer to TPG resulting from the demerger. Included in the tax assets {1997:485).
NLG 592 million prepayments and accrued incorme at
(998 tat post group annual report 57




Current assets

5] Inventory: NLG 92 million (1997: 103) T

ameunts in millions of guilders | at December 31,
|
1998 | (997
|
Raw materials and supplies i2 t
Finished goods 80 92
. 1
Total 22 103
Accounts receivable: NLG 2,778 million (1997 2,985) _!
amounts in millions of guilders ‘ at December 31,
1998 1997
Accounts receivable | 2,165 | 2,418
Deferred tax assets ‘ 270 : 253
VAT recové?{qble o 30 l 24
Accounts receivable from affiliated companies 14 i 29
Other 299 | 261
Total : 2,778 2,985
Accounts receivable for services rendered and defivered doubtful receivabies amounting to NLG 72 million on December
goods have been included after deduction of a provision for 31,1998 (1997:79).

ﬁg Prepayments and accruéd income: NLG 257 million (1997:291)
This includes amounts paid in advance to cover costs that will be invoiced. On December 31, 1998, this account primarily related to
charged against income in future years and amounts still to be prepayments amounting to NLG 165 million (1997: 193).

8] Cash and cash equivalents: NLG 890 million (1997:563)

The total amount is unrestricted.

E Group equity , -
Group equity consists of shareholders’ equity and minority See the corporate financial statements for an explanation of
interests. shareholders’ equity. -
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55 Provisions ) ' )
vlsions relate to obligations and risks associated with TPG's

erations and liabilities related to termination of employment

} provisions for retirement schemes: NLG 819 million (1997:787)

smountt in millions of guilders

tatement of changes in early redun-
rovisions for retirement schemes recirement  dancy pay other totat
_ Balance on December 31,1997 490 282 ; I5 | 787
thdrawals (105) (53 (158)
@itlonsl(releases) | 44 () 4 143
jﬁ;ﬁ«: 3 16 i 47
: Balance on December 31,1998 560 240 19 | 819

icoumcd vn'iqle at an average interest rate of 6%. Of the above
faravisions, NLG 158 million have a term of less than one year, of

The early retirement provision relates to commitmenzs to
employees using the scheme and to’those who are eligible to use
it. The redundancy pay provision relates to the entitlement to
redundancy payments of employees who worked as public
servants for the Netherlands Postal and Telecommunications
Services before January 1, 1989, and who were made redundant
before January [, [996.

reorgani- i

tatement of changes in other provisions zation other | total
|
‘Balance on December 31, 1997 1.796 791 1,875
Consolidation L 14 15
Withdrawals (671) (671)
_Additlons/(releases) 400 [ 401
eclassification T 47 65
orelgn exchange race effects @ @, (4)
. Balance on December 31, 1998 1,542 139 ! 1,681

Provision for reorganization
n the table below, the reorganization provision at December 31,

[997 and 1998 is presented together with the related additions
and withdrawals in 1998.

nounts in millions of guilders

redundant
. employee wage
tate'n'!ent Of Changes in post-em- benefit guarantees other
PTOVISIQns fOI" reorganization ployment COSTS COSLS costs total
—
- Balance on December 31, 1997 56 199 748 793 1,796
—_— - R
(__:Omolidatlon I i
Wi
ithdrawals an (60) . (66) (534) (671)
| Mdidonsl(releases) 8 35 357 400
- Reclassification '8 (8
Foreign exchange rate effects (2) (2)
———Eiiaicf on December 31, 1998 45 147 717 633 1,542
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In 1998, TPG made a net addition to its reorganization provisions
of NLG 400 million. TPG's provisions for reorganization deal
primarily with Briefpost 2000, a reorganization project of Mail
activities in the Netherlands, integration projects within Express,
promoting the corporate identity of TNT and some essential
adjustments for IT systems and IT aplications of TPG to prepare
them for the euro and the Year 2000.

The net addition of NLG 400 million consists of:

+ NLG 213 million for the continuation of the restructuring of
Mail activities, primarily in the Netherlands. Of this amount,
NLG 137 million relates to an update of the Briefpost 2000
provision due to the delay in the implementation of the
automated sorting centers. The delay results in a longer
transition period with additional costs for FTEs and
infrastructure. The restructuring of the International Mail
activities requires NLG 30 million. At this time, the
international sorting and handling activities are based on two
locations in the Netherlands. Both locations have to move to
another building, due to the fact that the existing lease
contracts cannot be continued. The International Mail activities
wifi be combined at one central building at Schiphol Airport.
An update for the provision for wage guarantees, for employees
far which the future pay rate has become less than their
current or previous pay rates, accounts for NLG 35 million.
Other future reseructuring costs for the Mail activities include
NLG 1 [ million primarily related to the movement of Mail
staff from various locations to one central building.

« NLG 82 million for an update of the provision for TNT
corporate identity costs. The objective is to create a uniform
global brand. Until mid-1998 TNT included numerous brands,
which are all scheduled to be replaced with the new TNT
identity. ’

+ NLG 48 million for several integration and restructuring
projects primarily in the Express business area in the geographic
regions Benelux, Germany, Asia and Australia,

Long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities from the State consist of NLG %0 million
ordinary loan {(Loan A) and NLG 69 million suberdinated {Loan B)
which were transferred from KPN to TPG upon the demerger,

The interest rate for Loan A is 6.37%. Final repayment wilt
take place on December 31,2003, 0r on a later date to be agreed
by the State and TPG.

The interest rate for loan B is 6.72%. Fina! repayment will
take place on December 31,2003, or on a later date to be agreed
by the State and TPG. The claim for repayment of the
subordinated Loan B principal of NLG 69 million is subordinate to
all other existing and future claims on TPG, including all claims by
the State.

&0

* NLG 33 million to prepare certain IT systems and IT
applications of TPG for the euro and the Year 2000, This
amount will be used for dedicated staffing replacement
equipment and extensive test procedures relating to both
projects.

* NLG 24 million for various other reorganization cosgs,

At December 31, [998, the total reerganization provision of

NLG 1,542 million is detailed as follows:

+ Post-employment benefit costs, for employees who are
expected to leave TPG (NLG 45 million). These costs consigt of
the accrual amount to be offered to employees who are
expected to voluntarily leave TPG.

* Redundant empioyee costs, for employees who lost or changeq
their jobs due to the reorganization but who are still entitled ¢
their full salaries (NLG 147 million).

* Wage guarantee accruals reflated to restructuring processes
represent an entitlement due to employees if their future pay
rate is less than their current pay rate (NLG 717 million).
The entitlements are mainly the resulc of the restructuring of
PTT Post’s distribution function of its Mail activities in the
Netherlands.

« Other costs, which include outplacement costs, moving
and travel expenses, retraining costs, implementation and
integration costs relating to the new organization structure,

implementation of the new corporate identity and euro and

Year 2000 costs {NLG 633 million).

TPG expects to make cash expenditures of approximately
NLG 674 million, NLG 238 million, NLG |35 million and NLG 495
million in 1999,in 2000, in 200( and thereafter, respectively.in
connection with the restructuring programs that are provided for.
TPG expects to create additional provisions in the coming years in
connection with future reorganization projects.

~

12; | oans of the State of the Netherlands: NLG 159 million (1997:0)

Loans A and B cannot be repaid prematurely, The State has
the right to require payment of the loans in full or in partat any
time in order to use the amounts thus received to pay for
Preference Shares A to be issued by TPG to the State at that time.

If the State exercises its option to subscribe for Preference

Shares A, payments will be required to be made of at least 25%
of the par value.

1998 tne post group annuval report
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EE Other long-term liabilities: NLG 124 million (1997:219)

Other long-term liabilities include financial lease obligations
amounting ta NLG 47 million and loans related to aircraft
financing amounting to NLG 45 million and NLG 9 million other
interest-bearing long-term liabilities, The other long-term
liabilities include non-interest bearing debt for an amount of
NLG 23 million.

The table below sets forth the amounts of the interest-
bearing long-term liabilities, including the interest-bearing current
portion, mentioned under Note 14 that are payable in each of the
years ending December 31.

amounts in millions of guilders state other
loans loans total
1999 71 71
2000 o 54 54
2001 9 9
2002 8, 8
2003 A 159 3 162
Thereafter 27 27
Total 159 172 331

Current liabilities

m
A4 Other short-term liabilities: NLG 2,196 million (1997:3,467)

Future minimum annual financial lease payments.are as

follows:

amounts in millions of guilders

payable in the year ejnding December 31,

1999 1
2000 2
2001 |
002 |
2003 I
thereafter 42

Total 58
Non-cancelable portion 0

amounts in millions of guilders

at December 31,

1998 1997 -

Short-term bank debt 260 1,734
Taxes and social security contributions 296 275
Trade accounts payable 923 683
Current portioalong-term debts 71 530
Expenses to be paid 92 113
Dividend payable 238
Other fiabilities 3le 132

Total 2,196 3.467

Short-term bank debrt consists of NLG 231 million
drawdowns under a short-term Australian dollar facility, which
was used to repay a 4.875% SFR 266 million debenzure,and
NLG 29 million local bank debt. The current portion of

1998 tat post group annua! repore

long-term debt consists of financial leases to an amount of

NLG ! | million 2nd loans related to aircrafz financing amounting

to NLG 60 million.
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Accrued liabilicies: NLG 1,716 million (1997: 1,629)

This includes amounts already received that will be credited to
future financial statemencs and amounts which are sdil wo be paid
that can be attributed to previous financial years.

amounts in millions of guilders

i at December 31,

1998 ° 1997

Amounts received in advance 262 126
Amounts to be paid attributed to previous years 844 ' 859
Vacation/vacation-payments 326 352
Terminal dues 124 I 112
Other 160 ‘I 180
Total 1,716 1629

E Commitments not included in the balance sheets

No corresponding financial statement number

amounts in tpillions of guilders

i at December 31,

i
statement of commitments not included in the balance sheets 1998 | 1997

1

Commitments relating to: :
Operating guarantees 206 : 276
Financial guarantees 1,151 | 1,264
Rent and lease contracts 3,892 ! 31,877
Capital expenditure 137 I 349
Purchase commitments 104 } B0

Of these commitments not included in the balance sheets,
NLG I.144 million are of a short-term nature (1997:2,035).

Operating guarantees
The operating guarantees primarily relate to a contract with
Postkantoren (NLG 201 miltion). Under this contract, TPG is
reguired to process a minimum number of transactions annually
with Postkantoren through the year 2000. If the number of
transactions falls below the minimum amount, TPG is obliged
to pay a penalty.

Financial guarantees
Total guarantees provided by TPG amounted to NLG [,151 million,
of which NLG 1,022 million relate to guarantees issued by TPG in
connection with the financing of aircraft through its 50% interest
in Ansett Worldwide Aviation Services (AWAS).

Rent and lease contracts

Operational lease expenses (including rental) amounted to
NLG 44! million in 1998 (1997:381).

Future operational lease payments on currently existing
contracts are as follows:

amounts in millions of guilders payable in the year e;nding December 31,

1999 - i 718
2000 384
2001 | 288
2002 : 328
2003 343
thereafter ‘ £,831

Total 1‘ 3.,892
Non-cancelable portion 0

These operating lease commitments mainly relate to aircra®.

buildings and equipment.

Through TPG's interest in AWAS, an aircraft leasing and
trading venture conducted through partnerships and incorporated
entities, TPG has a 50% share in the future net lease rentals. The
future net lease rentals are the annual operating lease rentals
payable under the relevant headleases to third parties minus the
aggregate operating lease rentals receivable from airline oj:eratc-’s
under the relevant subleases. As of December 31, 1998, the
aggregate operating lease rentals payable exceeds the operating
lease rentals receivable by an amount of NLG 2,060 millien.

;
i




sadlease obligations are the joint and several obligations of
e

- ners and entities. The shortfall net lease rentals will only
pa

subleases after expiration are not extended or replaced by

rise if
new sublease and aircraft cannor be sold.

~ TPG has classified AWAS as non-core and consequently
] -ln.unds to sell its entire share in this business. In conjunction with
its co-shareholder. discussions with potential interested parties

are continuing.

Capital expenditure
Commitments in connection with long-term contracts mainly

celte to Briefpost 2000 (NLG 80 million).

Purchase commitments
Commitments in connection with purchase refate for NLG 71
million to Postkantoren. These commitments consist of contracts
for general and technical services. Part of the commitments end
within a year, Other commitments relate to facilities and real

estate.
Legal proceedings
Multigroup Distribution Services Pty Limited (Multigroup),an

Australian company providing express freight transportation

fair values of financial instruments

services, commenced legal proceedings on July 21, 1995, against
TNT Australia Pty Limited, J. McPhee & Son (Australia) Pty Limited
and two other companies (Ansett Australia Limited and Mayne
Nickiess Limited) as respondents, in the Federal Court of
Australia. Multigroup is seeking an as yet unquantified amount of
damages and an account of profits. The proceedings involve
allegations that the above-mentioned respondents took partin
anti-competitive behavior in breach of the Australian Trade
Practices Act of 1974 and associated torts. All respondents are
defending these allegations.

Further, TPG is involved in several legal proceedings relfating
to the normal conduce of its business. TPG does not expect any
liability arising from these proceedings to have a material effect on
its results of operations, liquidity, capital resources or its financial
position. TPG has provided for all probabie liabilities.

Credit facilities
During the year 1998, TPG had committed and uncommitted
facilities outstanding with a number of domestic and international
banks amounting to NLG [,838 million. On these facilities,
NLG 266 million had been drawn on December 31, 1998,

amounis in millions of guilders

at December 31,1998 at December 31, 1997

carrying fair carrying fair
amount value ' amount value
a Cash and cash equivalents 8390 890 563 563
b Short-term debt 260 260 ° 1734 1,734
¢ Long-term debt ¥ 331 360 . 709 714

* The carrying amounts reported here can be related to the balance sheets
by adding the current portion of long-term debt to the balance sheets

a The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximated
their fair value because of the short maturities of the
instruments held.

b Short-term debt consists only of shart-term bank debt and
excludes the current portion of long-term interest bearing debt.
The fair value of short-term debt approximated its market value
because of the short maturities of the relevant instruments.

¢ Long-term debt includes the current portion of long-term
interest bearing debt, which is included in the balance sheets

long-term Kabilities, excluding the acerued long-term liabilities and
non-interest-bearing long-term debc (NLG 23 million).

under short-term liabilities. The fav:ir value of other long-term
debt has been estimated by calculating the discounted value of
the loan portfolio using an estimated yield curve, appropriate to
the terms of the contracts, in effect at the end of the year.

The company does not hold or issue financial instruments
for trading purposes nor does it allow its subsidiaries to do so.
The following table outlines the gross expenses from outstanding
forward exchange transactions and their fair values at
December 31, 1998.

amounts in millicns of guilders

at December 31,1998 at December 31,1997

nominal fair nominal fair

value value

Total hedges long 1,013 1,007 804 807
Total hedges short (294) (300) (747) (757)
Net 719 707 57 50

As a result of the fact that outstanding liabilities of TPG at
year-end | 998 were primarily short-term and variable interest

bearing, the differences between the carrying amount of these

1998 tnt poscgroup annual report

liabilities and the fair value of these contracts were not material.

Mo currency or interest swaps were outstanding ac December 31,
1998.
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Notes to the consolidated statements of lncome

):
H
- :
7] Net sales: NLG 16,118 million (1997: 15,100)
i
amounts in millions of guilders i year ended December 31, amounts in millions of guilders ! year ended Decamber :“‘
i
net sales by business area; 1998 1997 net sales by geographic area 1998 1997
i !
: ¥
Mail | 7.638|  7.109  The Netherlands 6,997 P
Express C 6,215 6,064  United Kingdom 2,152 916!
‘ Logistics i 2,265 1,927 lealy \ {185 | oao‘
. ; . i -}
, Total i 16,118 15,100 Germany i 1,184 303"
" Rest of Europe ' 2,410 2_070'
{ Europe 1 13,928 |2TB_S“F
| ‘ : —_
| Asia 482 283
- [
| 1 — ¢
Australia ‘ 874 933"
| :
United States and Canada 3 579 561
/ : .3 —
: ‘ N Rest of world : ; 255 342
. : . P
.. Total 16,118 151008
f :
=2 Other operating revenues: NLG 209 million (1997: 167) ;
Other operating revenues include certain claims, revenues from )
the disposal of non-core activities, proceeds from sale of property
and equipment and the rent of buildings and houses,
|"9! . R . R . ery- 3
27 Salaries and social security contributions: NLG 6,030 million (1997: 5,824)
1 PR " ;
! { amounts in millions of guilders | year ended December 31, At the end of 1998, 12,545 people (1997: 12,163) were 4}
i 1998 1997 employed by proportionately consolidated affiliated companies. of
; 1‘ whom 6,757 were on the payroll of Dutch companies, primarily
j ‘ Salaries ) 5,062 5,101 Postkantoren B.Y. and Geldnet and 5,788 were on the payroll of
1 '
oo TNT i id lands.
? : Pension contributions i 312 261 companies outside the Netherlands
| | — - ; 5
i | Social security contributions ; 656 462 Remuneration of members of the H
P : ) : : Superviso rd and the Board E
Total 6,030 i 5824 P ry Boa t ?
‘ of Management .
In 1998, the remuneration of the current members of the
The transfer zllowance (a supplementary payment to Supervisory Board, excluding VAT, and Board of Management. g
employees, compensating them for social security premiums}) is including pension and social security contributions, amounted ¢
included under salaries. ) to NLG 339,000 and NLG 9,604,000, respectively. ¥
3
year ended December 31, !
' i
number of employees {998 ! 1997 i
5
TPG (01,582 ¢ - 94,116
Of which in the Netherlands 62,095 . 59,600
i
£
3
64 1999 tnt post group annual report 3




@ Depreciation, amortization and impairments: NLG 458 million (1997:415)

Tmounts in millions of guilders year ended December 31,
1998 1997
Goodwill 114 114
Property. plant and equipment 344 301
Total 458 | 415
Depreciation and impairments of preperty, plant and
equipment are detailed as follows:
amounts in millions of guilders year ended December 31, )
1998 - 1997
By classification:
tand and buildings 84 : 91
Piant and equipm%nc 65 44
Other property, p|;.=nt and equipment 95 166
Total 344 . 301
By cause:
Regular depreciation 344 298
Impairment 3
Total 344 301

(1]

-
21 Other operating expenses: NLG 1,451 million (1997: 1,192)
Other operating expenses include NLG 400 million of net

additions (additions minus releases) to provisions for

reorganization {1997: 447).

22 Interest and similar expenses: NLG 173 million (1997: 222) -
amounts in millions-::f guilders ~ year ended December 31,
1998 1997
Interest on long-term Habilities 23 54
Interest added to provisions 47 20
Other 103 148
Total 173 222

DUIOIUE (O $TIDWIILIS PIEPICSLAI D1 O 510U [ sjua[ua;e:l_s |2|3UEU|}
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5 Income taxes: NLG 544 million (1997: 469)

Tax expense in the statement of income for 1998 amounts to
NILG 544 million, or 39.7% of income before income taxes
(1997: 40.4%).

Deferred tax assets consist of the following differences:

amounts in millions of guilders at December 31,

Income tax expense is comprised of the following: 1998 1997
amounts in millions of guilders year ended December 31, Differences between valuation
1998 1997 for book and tax purposes of:

: Provisi 519 52
Current tax expense 467 696 rovisions >

‘ Property, plant and equipment 51 56
Changes in deferred taxes roperty. pant and equipmen _
(excl. acquisitions) and Other 157 157
foreign exchange rate efects ‘ 77 @2 | Total deferred tax assets 727 ] 738

Total income taxes 544 | 469 :

NLG 113 million of the total tax expenses of NLG 467

million in 1998 relaces to taxes payable to foreign tax authorities
(1997:93).

Tax.‘e{fpense differs from the amount calcufated by
multiplying the Dutch income tax rate with income before income
taxes. The differences between the effective income tax rate and
the Dutch income tax rate of 35% are attributable to the following
factors:

In percentages

year ended December 31,

1998 | 1997
i
Dutch statutory income tax rate 35.0 | 35.0
Effective income tax rate .
other countries 2.3 | 2.0
Permanent differences: 7
Non and partly deductible costs 0.3 0.0
Depreciation of goodwill 2.9 | 3.4
Other ) (0.8) 0.0
Effective income tax rate 39.7 40.4

The difference between the total income taxes in the
staternents of income and the current tax expense is due to
temporary differences. These differences are recognized as
deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities. The deferred tax
assets mainly relate to deferred receivables from the Dutch tax
authorities.

The following table shows the changes in deferred tax assets
in 1998,

At December 31,1998, deferred tax assets have been
included under financial fixed assets for NLG 457 million (1997 485)
and under current assets for NLG 270 million (1997:253).

The total accurnulated losses at the year end 1998 amounted
to NLG 1,260 million. With these losses carried forward potential
future tax benefits of NLG 489 million could be recognized.

Due to the fact that the deferred taxes are recognized if it
is more likely than not that they can be offset against taxes payable
in the future years, an allowance has been made for a total amount
of NLG 373 million. The main reason for this allowance is the fact
that compensation of these losses with future profits is less likely
as a result of restructuring programs and as a result of the
expiration of carry forward losses.

The deferred tax assets, net of this allowance, amounted to
NLG 116 million at the end of 1998. The total loss carry forward
of NLG 1,260 million expires as follows.

amounts in millions of guilders

expiration loss carry forward
~7

1999 . : 226

2000 L 205
2001 : 14|
2002 : 128
2003 and further : ’ 560

Total 'I 260

The following table shows the changes in deferred tax
liabilities in 1998.

amounts in miltions of guilders

statement of changes in
deferred tax assets

amounts in millions of guilders

statement of changes in
deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets on December 31, 1997 738 Deferred tax liabilities on December 31, 1997 402

Changes {13) Changes . 64

(De)consolidartions / foreign exchange effects 2 {De)consolidations { foreign exchange effects {10)

Deferred tax assets on December 31, {998 727 Deferred tax liabilities on December 31, 998 456
66 1998 tnt post group anaual reporg




Deferred tax liabilities consist of the following differences:

; o In milliens of guilders

Amoun

at December 31,

% 1998 | 1597
Differences between valuation fo“r 5
book value and tax purposes of: 5
Provisions . 222 152
Aircrafe leases and other J 234 ' 250
Total deferred tax liabilities } 456 f 402

E Research and development

o corresponding financial statement number.

n 1998, TPG spent NLG 8 million (i997: (4) on research

nd development.

Current value method

- *
tha resuits in the ¢onsolidated balance sheets and the consalidated
tatements of income. The differences in capital and income would
negligible if valuation and determination of income were based

Of Current value.
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‘Historical cost was used for valuation purposes and to determine
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Notes to the consolidated cash flow statements

@ Net cash provided by operating activities: NLG 1,423 million (1997: 1,153)

Net cash provided by operating activities in 1998 was mainly
generated from net income (NLG 820 million), adjusted for
depreciation, amortization and impairments (NLG 458 million}.
Changes in provisions (NLG 173 million) negatively affected cash
provided by operating activities in 1998, while a reduction in
working capital of NLG 241 million had a positive effece.

Total movement of accounts receivable ameunted to a
decrease of NLG 207 million, of which higher trade accounts
receivable used a cash flow of NLG 3| million, related to the
increase of operating revenues, The number of days of outstanding

TETW

ln 1998, net cash used in investing acrivities related primarily to
capital expenditures in property, plant and equipment.

In 1998, TPG acquired several group companies, mainly in
Mail, for ¥ amount of NLG 98 million. The acquisitions included
Rinaldi (2 domestic mail company in ltaly), GMA (a direct mail
company in Germany) and Tesselaar Marketing Services (call
centers in Benelux). Disposal of group companies included certain
non-core activities.

In 1998, capital expenditures on property, plant and
equipment made by TPG amounted to NLG 942 million and
related for NLG 370 million to Mail, for NLG 484 million to
Express and for NLG 88 million to Logistics. In Mail, capital
expenditures related mainly to Briefpost 2000, the upgrade of
the offices and computer software of Postkantoren and the

accounts receivable remained stable. The remainder of the
movement in accounts receivable is related to a receivable from
KPN in 1997, che receipt of which is included in the movement in
net cash used in financing activities,

Current liabilities increased by NLG 526 million. Trade
accounts payable related to the growth in operating revenues
increased by NLG 243 million, Other current liabifities increased
by MLG 275 million, including amounts received in advance and
tax and social securities.

26/ Net cash used in investing activities: NLG (987) million (1997: (269))

renewal of post boxes. In Experess, capital expenditures included
the air hub in Liége, aircraft, road hubs among other items in
Benelux, UK and Germany and other equipment. In Logistics,
capital expenditures were mainfy made for Fiat in ltaly,a
multinational company in the fast-moving consumer goods market
in China, the automotive branch in Australia and Germany, and
other. Disposals of property, plant and equipment amounted to
NLG 90 million.

Other financial fixed assets increased by NLG 139 millioa in
1998, including an additional foan issued to AYAS for an amount
of NLG 36 million. Furthermore. an amount of NLG 26 million
refers to entitlements to personnel taken over from Fiat, which
will be reimbursed by Fiat at the time these entitiements are
exercised by the employees.

Eﬂ Net cash used in financing activities: NLG (106) million (1997: (763))

The cash flow used in financing activities was NLG (106) million in
1998. Interim dividend was paid for an amount of NLG 113 millien.
Shareholder’s equity increased by NLG 1,287 million of which
NLG 1,248 million was due to the demerger.

The increase in long-term financing in the amount of
NLG 178 million consisted of NLG |59 million related to the
State loans assigned to TPG in the demerger and NLG 19 million
other.

Long-term liabilities were repaid for an amount of NLG 556

million. In February 1998, a 4.875% SFR 266 million (NLG 371
million) debenture matured, which was refinanced by a NLG 231

638

million drawdown under a short-term Australian dollar facility.
Furthermore, long-term liabilities repaid included aircraft related
funding, financial leases ang.several loan facilities denominated in

different currencies.

Decrease in short-term bank debt was NLG 902 million.
Repayment of 2 drawdown under the Revolving Credit Facility
amounted to NLG 1,725 million, repayment of other short-term
debt amounted to NLG 9 million. Furthermore, the decrease
consisted of receivables from KPN {NLG 532 million) and other
(NLG 40 million). The facilities drawn {NLG 260 million) included
a short-term Aystralian dollar facility of NLG 231 million.
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#X pro rata consolidation
"corresponding financial statement number
lTPG accounts for joint ventures in which TPG and another
ety have equal contrel ace
nethod. Key information regarding the joint ventures is set forth

balow:

ording to the pro rata consolidation

mounts in millions of guilders

year ended December 31,

1998 1997

243 | 235

: : 86 | 137

|

120 | 127

96 | 104

3 |

10| 140

5151 472

10 12

6 ! 8

Net'cash provided by operating activities (1) 72
»N-_el tash used in investing activities (51 ) 4
Net cash used in financing activities (! ) "
:C_H'anges in cash and cash equivalents (53): 30
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TNT Post Group N.V. -

corporate balance sheets

after appropriation of net income

amounts in millions ) at December 31, at December 31, at December 31,
assets pro forma 1998 1998 | 1997
EUR NLG NLG

fixed assets

# Financial fixed assets

Investments in group companies " 1,436° 3,t64 w’ 2,369
fnvestment in affiliated companies (19) 7 (42)
Accounts receivable from affiliated companies 0 Q %
Other loans ' 17 ‘ 37 i
Prepayments and accrued income 172 378 \
tota fixed assets 1,605 3,537 | 2,369

current assets

Accounts receivable from group companies 1,444 3,182
Accounts receivable from affiliated companies | 2
Other accounts receivable (2) (5)
Prepayments and accrued income 121 267 .
total current assets 1,564 3,446 |
total assets 3,169 6,983 2.369
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punts in millions

at December 31,

at December 31,

at December 31,

abilities and shareholders’ equity pro forma |E93§ I?ﬁg :\?fé
E%}é[r)‘areholders' equity :
Bl tssued share capital 216 1 476
: Addi:ionat paid-in capital 1435 . ! 3,163
204 : 449
total shareholders’ equity 1,855 : 4,088 2,369
Pprovisions ;
Retirement schemes 237 ‘ 523
Deforred tak \i3bilities 101 i 222
791 1,742
total provisions 1,129 2,487
ong-term liabilities
tace of the Necherlands
Ordinary loan 41 90
i, Subordinated loan 31 1 69
‘Accrued liabilities 3 7
total long-term liabilities 75 166
current liabilities -
Accrued liabilities 2 4
Dividend payable 108 . 238
total current liabilities 1o 242
total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 3,169 6,983 2369
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TNT Post Group N.V. -

corporate statements of income

As the financial statements of TNT Post Group N.V.are included - of income are presented in an abridged form (article 402, Ticle 9,
in the consolidated financial statements, the corporate statements Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code).
amounts in millions ) i year ended December 31,
pro forma {998 1998 1997
EUR | NLG NLG
Results from investments in group companies after taxes 377 i 832 -
Other income and expenses after taxes (5) ‘ (i 2) }
net income 372 | 820 694

Notes to the corporate financial statements

The corporate financial statements of TNT Post Group N.V.are corporate financial statements are similar to those used in the
included in the consolidated financial statements. The accounting consolidated financial statements. The comparable figures of 1997
principles and the principles used to determine results in the relate to PTT Post Holding N.V.

.l;‘

‘Notes to the corporate balance sheets

Fixed assets

g
29 Financial fixed assets: NLG 3,537 million (1997:2,369)

amounts in millions of guilders

accouats
investments investments receivable prepayments '
statement of changes in in group inafiliated  from affiliated other and other |
: financial fixed assets compariies companies companies toans income total
Bafance on December 31, 1997 2.369 Lo 2,369
= changes in 1998:
5 Addicions * ) 256 37 378 662
Disposals (i3) - : (13)
~ Repayments (256) ' _ (256)
Foreign exchange effects (37) (37)
Results 832 : 832
Other (20) ' (20)
Total changes 795 {42) 0 37 378 I 1_65.
Balance on December 31, 1998 3,164 {42) 0 37 378 3,53;
* Included in the additions is an amount of NLG 239 million related to the demerger.
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‘ﬁ;reholders' equity: NLG 4,088 million (1997:2,369)
fa)

=

s in millions of guilders issued additional J
shared paid-in other -
hanges in shareho[ders’ eqUitY capital capital reserves I total
: ]
Balance on December 31,1997 | 2,369
— '
% Equity surplus demerger from KPN 1,248
Balance on January 1, 1998 reflecting demerger 475 3,142 3,617
Tt
 Stock dividend t (¥} 0
fatndi
: Fareign exchange effects 37 (37)
-.Net income 820 820
Dividend @Gsh G35
ther 7 22 17 39
; | "
Balance on December 31, 1998 476 3,163 449 4,088

he balance on December 31, 1997, refers to the equity of

:PTT Post Holding N.V. At the date of the demerger, the shares of
PTT Post Holding N.V. representing the Mail, Express and Logistics
ctivities, with an asset value of NLG 2,369 million,and certain
Jointly held assets and liabilities not directly aliocable to the Mail,
Express and Logistics business with a net asset value of NLG 1,248

E Issued share capital: NLG 476 million

TNT Post Group N.V. was incorporated on December 29, 1997.
The authorized capital of TNT Past Group N.V. as of June 28,
1998, was NLG 2.36 billion. The authorized capital is composed of
the following:

* 944,000,000 Ordinary Shares;

+ 589,999,999 Preference Shares A;

+ 826,000,000 Preference Shares B;and

* one Special Share,

gach with a par value of NLG |.

L

The Ordinary Sharés are in bearer form, but may be
registered on request of the holder. The Special Share and the
Preference Shares are registered.

LU unl s

At December 31, 1998, the issued share capital was NLG 476
million and consisted of one Special Share and 475,790,931
- Ordinary Shares, The State is the holder of the Special Share.
The State holds approximately 44% of the Ordinary Shares.

Management option plan In 1998 a management option
plan was approved by the Supervisory Board, The management
Option plan provides for granting options on TPG Ordinary Shares,
tither to members of the Board of Management pursuant to a
decision of the Supervisory Board or to other managers pursuant

1998 tnt post group annual repart

million were transferred, by ope:;acion of law, to the company.

(See also note ! to the financial statements.) At June 28, 1998,

the date of the demerger, 475,173,350 Ordinary Shares were issued
by operation of law to existing KPN shareholders. The original
estimate at April 30, 1998, of 473,289,922 shares was updated at
the date of the demerger. -

to a decision by the Board of Management reached in consultation
with the Supervisory Board. Apart from exceptions for certain
countries, the plan mandates a vesting period of three years.
Options granted lapse on the earlier of five years after granting
and the date the employee ceases to be employed by TPG. The
exercise price for an option on ene TPG Crdinary Share is equal
to the market value of one TPG Ordinary Share at the date the
option was granted.

In 1998, options on 732,300 Ordinary Shares in TPG were
granted under the management Bption plan, with an exercise price
ranging from NLG 46.61 to NLG 51.{1,of which 120,000 were
granted to members of the Board of Management and the
remaining part to other managers. At the time of granting, TPG
informed the managers that the options were granted with a view
to foster long-term commitment to TPG. Az the end of 1998, none
of the granted options had vested. The number of forfeited share
options was zero and no options had expired. The company
intends to issue Ordinary Shares upon exercise of the options.

The following table shows the dilutive effect on the net

income per Ordinary Share if all granted options under the
management option plan were exercised in 1998,
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number of
earnings per share NLG shares/ADS
Average number of Ordinary Shares in 998 475,339,166
Dilured number of Ordinary Shares i 18,039
Average number of Ordinary Shares in 1998 on fully diluted bases T 475,357,205
Basic net income per Ordinary Share and per ADS .73
Diluted net income per Ordinary Share and per ADS 1.73 J
For these option plans, ne expense is recognized in the options granted in 1998 comes to NLG 26.09. The method used
income statement.Vafuation of the management share options in this valuation is the binominal method, American with dividend
under SFAS 123 (accounting for stock-based compensation) issued  yield. The significant assumprions for valuation are a volatility
in 1998 would result In an adjustment to net income of NLG 4 of the stock of 58.5%, dividend yield of 0.45%, risk-free rate
million, The impact on net income per Ordinary Share would equivalents to 4.1% and an expected life of the options to the
be NLG 0.01. The weighted average grant date fair value of the end of term.
3] Additional paid-in capital: NLG 3,163 million
This additional paid-in capital is exempt for Dutch tax purposes.
32"0ther reserves: NLG 449 million
The profit for 1998 has been calculated as the net income for 1998
of TNT Post Group N.V.and all its subsidiaries. The carporate
resuit of TNT Post Group N.V. for 1998 is NLG 12 million
negative.
Commitments not included
in the balance sheets
TNT Post Group N.V.has issued a declaration of joint and several
liability for some of its group companies in compliance with
article 403, Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, See note 33,
Py
33/ Subsidiaries and affiliated companies on December 31, 1998
No corresponding financial statement number.
The full list containing the information referred to in Article 379 A number of affiliated companies have not been consolidated
T ' and Article 414, Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code is filed at because of their limited financial importance.
i the office of the Chamber of Commerce in Amsterdam.
Supervisory Board Board of Management
J.M.T. (James} Cochrane AJ. {Ad) Scheepbouwer
W, (Wim) Dik M.P. (Peter) Bakker
V. (Victor) Halberstadt L.T. (Berr) van Doorn
J-H.M. (Jan) Hommen J.A. (John) Fellows
A (Arie) Maas C.M. (Carel} Paauwe

C.J.{Coen) Oort
R.W.H. (Rolf) Stomberg
M. (Morris) Tabaksblat

Amsterdam, March 22, 1999
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Concession

General .
s has been granted 2 postal concession by law (Enabling Acx).

~ has entrusced the postal concession (the Concession} to
'PTT Post.

TPG achieves 85 percent of its revenues in markets that are

cﬂ}irelr open to competition Some postal services that TPG

ovides in the Netherlands under the Concession are not open

to competition. Services
5 percent of TPG's revenues.

not subject to competition account for

Postal Concession
‘Mandatory postal services
—']Jn'dor the Postal Concession, the company is required to provide

' %imy personin the Netherlands, for payment, the conveyance
aﬁ(hln the Netherlands of letters and other addressed postal items
(;'rlmcd matcers and parcels) weighing up to and including

0 klfograms and measuring no more than 100 cm x 50 em x 50 cm.
he Postal Act does allow the company to make certain
"fdiuﬂmcnts in the performance of the mandatory service in order
‘10 customize it 1o customers and market requirements as they

may develop from time to time.

The mandatery postal service also requires the company to
rovide to any person in the Netherlands, for payment, the
renveyance of postal items to and from countries outside the
Natherfands in accordance with the rules of the Universal Postal
Unlon convention.

iﬂiha Metherlands, and to and from countries outside the
Netherlands. to convey, for payment, letters weighing up to and

]"o'ldl.and to issue postal stamps and imprinted stamps bearing the
i‘f_r_lgy of the monarch and/or the word “Nederland.” The

T?G's consolidated financial statements are prepared in
"i;gordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the
:Mecherlands (Dutch GAAP), which differ in certain respects from
Renerally accepted accounting principles in the United States

{US GAAP). The following is 2 summary of the significant
@fferences in the case of TPG,

Employment schemes and group
reorganization

der Do, . . .
ade ch GAAP. restructuring provisions are required to be
n relati i N
atdn to anticipated costs of planned reorganizations

d on . .
e .ma.nageﬂ'lEm:s decision to restructure parts of its
“®fQanization. There ar

of

ftems ; e no specific requirements as to the nature
s in i .
cluded in restructuring provisions. Under US GAAR,

pecific criger;

1eri i imi i
) ‘teria relating to timing and nacure must be met in order
¥ recognize 3 liabilit

¥ and expense for costs associated with a
festruceuring,

1998 tat post group annual report

Price cap systems -
The price that the average user pays for services under the
Concession is linked to the indices published by the Cenctral
Planning Office. Price amendments may not exceed the
movements of the indices. For mandatory services of PTT Post,
this is the index of the wage costs per employee in the private
sector {adjusted for full-time labor costs), This system is used to
control the overall development of charges which apply to the
complete range of services. PTT Post has the freedom to change
its prices for individual services on the basis of market
considerations by varying percentages within the limits set by the
price cap system. The external auditor audits the correct
application of the price control systems.

Annual Concession report to OPTA
TPG is required to report every year to the Independent Postal
and Telecommunications Authority (OPTA} on the operation of
the Concession. TPG must show that it has operated the
mandatory services and obligations in the year under review with
sufficient care and awareness of its responsibility to society and
that it has complied with the conditions applying to it under the
Concession. The external auditor audits the Concession report.

Consultative Body for PTT Post
A PTT Post Consultative Body has been set up to ensure that TPG,
as the holder of the Concession, meets its obligations to society in
accardance with the wishes of end users, and to enable an
exchange of information with supptiers and other interested
parties. The Consultative Body discusses matters concerning the
Concession which are of a national and general nature. The
compaosition of the Consultative Body is designed to reflectits
function as a sounding board as effectively as possible. The
Consultative Body is composed of representatives of end users
and of other sections of society with an interest in the services
assigned to TPG by the government.

Under Dutch GAAP, TPG has recognized a provision for
benefics offered to employees that elect to leave TPG (post-
employment benefit costs). Under LS GAAP, TPG is required to
recognize a liability for the contractual portion of these benefits in
accordance with SFAS No. |12 “Employers’ Accounting for Post-
employment Benefits”. The remaining costs are required to be
recognized as an expense in the period in which the employee
accepts the offer.

Under Dutch GAAP, TPG has recognized a provision for
redundant employee costs. Under US GAAP, TPG is required to
recognize the portion of the provision that relates to employees
that will not render future service to TPG. The remaining costs
are required to be recognized as an expense in the period in which
the employee renders the service. Under Dutch GAAR TPG has
recagnized a liability for future wage guarantees. Under US GAAFR,
TPG is required to recognize these costs in the period in which

the service is rendered.
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Under Dutch GAAP, TPG has recognized a liability for
training costs and moving costs. Under US GAAPR, TPG is required
to recognize these costs as an expense in the period in which they
are Incurred.

Pension costs
TPG remits in advance pension premiums on a monthly basis to
the Stichting Bedrijfspensicenfonds TNT Post Groep and the Stichting
Ondernemingspensioenfonds TNT Post Groep. These foundations
together cover the pension obligations (of a defined benefit
nature) of the majority of TPG’s employees in the Netherlands.
In addition, TPG has certain retirement provisions on its balance
sheet, for instance in connection with the Dutch early retirement
schemes, These provisions are based on acwarial assumptions
and the application of methods prevalent in Dutch practice.

TPG's subsidiary TNT participates outside the Netherfands
in more than 30 pension plans. Most of the plans offer TNT no
opportunity to participate in the administration of the plans and
are defined contribution plans. Actuarial reviews are conducted
annually of the major defined benefit plans (TNT Group
Retirement Funds, schedules 2 and 3). TPG contributes to these
two plans in accordance with actuarial recommendations. TPG’s
contributions to the defined benefit plans are expensed as made
and the surplus assets of the plans are not reflected in the equity
consolidated balance sheet.

Methodology that reflects the concepts of accrual accounting
with amounts reflected in the income statement systematicaily
over the service lives of the employees covered by the plan.
Amounts charged to expense are typically differenc from amounts
funded. The calculation of the income statement charge is more
comprehensive and regulated, particularly as to the use of actuarial
assumptions, than in the Netherlands.

TPG adopted SFAS No. 87 for US GAAP purposes as of
january 1, 1989. The expense for the significant defined benefit
plans of TINT is determined on the concepts of defined benefit
plan accounting.

Goodwill
The amount of goodwill arisen from the acquisitions of TNT and
GDEW under US GAAP differs from the goodwill under Dutch
GAAP due to differences in the fair values. The negative variance
of NLG 88 million at the end of 1997 arose from differences in
the valuation of the pension accrual according to SFAS 87, fair
market value and break-up costs of TNT borrowings, capitalized
software, reorganization provisions and related rax effect.
At December 31, 1998, goodwill as determined under US GAAP
is NLG 86 million lower than under Dutch GAAP. The difference
is amortized in up to 40 years.

Other differences
Under Dutch GAARF, restoration of previously recognized
impairments is required when the reason for the impairment is no
tonger valid. Under US GAARP, restoration of previously recognized
impairments is prohibited.

Under Butch GAAP, the net proceeds before tax from the
sale of activities and assets are included in operating revenues,
Under US GAAP these proceeds would not be considered
operating income. This difference does not resultin a
reconciliation to US GAAP net income.
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Property, plant and equipment transferred to TPG in

connection with the incorporation of the postalbusiness as

of January [, 1989, were valued at the then current value. This
method is prescribed under Dutch law and acceptable under
Dutch GAAP. US GAAP requires that property, plant and
equipment be valued at historical cost. No adjustment to the
Dutch GAAP accounts is made in the US GAAP recenciliation in
relation to this difference as the original Historical cost cannot be
determined.

The interest related to pensions and other similar provisions
amounting to NLG 47 million in 1998-(1997:20) is included in
interest expense under Dutch GAAP. Under US GAAF, the interest
on provisions of this nature would be considered pension expense
and included in income from operations. This difference does not
result in a reconciliation to US GAAP net income.

Under Ducch GAAP, investments in joint ventures may be
proportidnately consolidated. In general, the propartionate
consolidation method is prohibited under US GAAP. However,
as allowed under the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission’s (SEC) rules applicable to Ferm 20-F, no adjustment
has been made for this difference,

The company prepares its statement of cash flows in
accordance with Dutch GAAP which is consistent with
Internationat Accounting Standards. As allowed under the SEC’s
rules applicable to Form 20-F, no adjustment has been made for
this difference.

Under Dutch GAAPF, all provisions are classified as long-term
liabilities. US GAAP requires that the amount due within the next
year be classified as current liabilities. This difference would
increase current liabilities by NLG 829 million at December 31,
1998 (1997 708). :

Self-insurance accruals are provided under Dutch GAAF with
amounts derived from the insurance premium that would have
been paid had the risk been insured. Under US GAAP, accruals that
can be reascnably estimated are only recorded when and to the
extent it is probable that a {oss has been incurred at the balance
sheet date.

Expenditures for intangible assets such as certain software
{not including system software) are expensed as incurred under
Dutch GAAP. Under US GAAP, the cost of purchased software
used in the business and costs associated with placing the assert
in service to meet its intended use is capitalized.

No goodwill arose on investments accounted for by the
net asset value method (equity method) in 1998 (1997:0). Under
Dutch GAAP, this is shown separately on the balance sheet.
Under US GAAP. this goodwill would be classified as an equity
invescment, This difference does not result in a reconciliacion
to US GAAF net income.

Costs related to refinancing liabilities from acquired
companigs are recognized as liabilities under Dutch GAAP. Under
US GAAP, these costs are recognized as casts when incurred.

Under Dutch GAAP, non-core investments held for resale
are carried at historical cost or lower net realizable value. Under

US GAAP, one of these investments is accounted for using the
equity method. Prior years have been restated in the reconciliation.
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me and ordinary

e ) v
hareho!ders equity
jation statements
acize the principal adjustments,

reconcile net income and total

econcﬂ
following statements SUM™™

&% of their ax eﬁects.which

R
s .
s sunts in millions of guilders

Employment schemes znd group reorganization

nslon costs
efinancing costs

Goodwilt amortization

[ ebreciation on restoratien of previously recognized impairments

preciation of capitalized sofuware

“Non-core investments
S

‘Tax effece of adjustments

ncome under Us GAAP

Baslc net income per ordinary shares and per ADS {in guitders) !

Diluted net income per ordinary share and per ADS (in guilders)

1144 on the average amount of 475,339,166 Ordinary Share:
9 Bared on 475,357,105 Qrdinary Shares, including shares represented by ADS.

auats in millions of guilders

Employment schetaes and group reorganization

Capitalization of interest

" Final dividend 1998

Pension liability

. Goodwill

Restoration of previously recognized impairments, net of depreciation

Self-insurance

Capitalized software

Non-core investments

Deferred taxes on adjustments

Shareholders' equity under US GAAP
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shareholders’ equity under Dutc
would have been reported had US

5. including shares represented by ADS.

h GAAP to the amounts that
GAAP been applied:

year endedi December 31,

1998 |

820 |

(ma):i
(112).
|

I

2 |
3|
(12),

|

(2);

1997

694

221
(177
34)
2
2
(13)
48

e'lf-lnsu?ffa{\ce
: ‘ 53 \ 56

(42
757

‘year ended December 3%,
1

1998

238 !
(1,469)'
(86).
(20),
46

130
(32),
4,393 |

1997

2,369

(1,357}
(e8)
(23)

48

12

102
(147)

2,622
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Other information

Auditor’s report

Introduction
We have audited the accompanying 1998 financial statements of
TNT Post Group NLV., Amsterdam. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion eon these financial
statements based on our audit.

Scope
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the Netherlands, Those standards reguire

" that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial staternents are free of rmaterial
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the company as of December 31, 1998,
and of the result for the year then ended, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the Netherlands,
and comply with the financial reporting requirements included
in Title 9, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. '

Amsterdam, March 22, 1999
PricewaterhouseCoopers N.V.
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Extract from the articles of

ssociation on appropriation

“of net income -

er the articles of association, 7 percent of NLG |

e NLG 0.07) will be paid on the Special Share (article 35,

P;r;graph {3, The dividend specified in article 35, paragraph 1 will
paid on Preference Shares. Preference Shares have not been

fssued. Subject IO the approval of the Supervisory Board, the

Board of Management will determine which part of net income

remaining after payment of the dividend on the Special Share (and

any Preference Shares) will be transferred to the reserves (article

35, paragraph 2).The remaining net income will be distributed as

dividend on Ordinary Shares {article 35, paragraph 3).

Appropriation of net income
Subject to approval of the financial statements, the dividend
over {998 has been set 2t NLG 0.80 (EUR 0.363) incash per
Ordinary Share of NLG | par value. This is a 46 percent pay-
out of the net income for 1998. After deducting the interim
dividend of NLG 0.30 (EUR 0.1386) per Ordinary Share paid out
in September 1998, the fina! dividend will be NLG 0.50
(EUR 0.227) per Ordinary Share. The interim dividend was paid
out as an optional dividend, as will be the final dividend.

appropriation of net income ] 1998
i Net income ] 820
Appropriation in accordance with ;
the articles of association |
Dividend on Special Share 0 i
(article 3_:5: paragraph 1) NLG 0.07 N !
Reserves a-ldopt‘ed by the Board of Management and approved |
by the Supervisory Board (article 35, paragraph 2} 469 :
469
Dividend on Ordinary Shares ! 35]
Interim dividend paid 1 113
Final dividend ] 238

Relationship with the State
The State of the Netherlands owns approximately 44 percent of
the shares of TPG. An efficiently operating postal system is of
great importance 1o Dutch society for various reasons, including
economic, strategic and national security reasons, and is therefore
of general interest to the State. For certain important postal
services, TPG is the exclusive holder of the postal concession
granted by the S}ate. As a result, TPG is crucial to the

maintenance of an efficiently operating postal system in the
Netherlands.

The operation of the postal concession is regulated by the
Enabling Act. In addition, the State uses various corporate
governance mechanisms to protect its general interest in an
efficiently operating postal system, These include its ownership
of the Special Share, options to acquire Preference Shares A and
a long-term equity interest in TPG. .

Special control rights under

the articles of association

Special Share
The State holds the Special Share of the company, which gives it
the right 1o approve decisions that lead to fundamental changes
in the group structure of TPG. The State has committed itself
10 exercising the rights attached to the Special Share only to
safeguard the general interest in having an efficiently operating
Postal system or to protect its financial interest as a shareholder,
and not solely to protect the company from, or with the additional
PUrpose of preotecting the company from, shareholder influence
Unwanted by the company. The State is the holder of the Special
Share and may not transfer or encumber the Special Share without
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the approval of the Board of Management and the Supervisory
Board. Ownership of the Special Share gives the State the right to
approve certain actions by TPG, including issvances of shares in
the capital of the company, restrictions on or exclusions of the
preemptive rights of holders of Ordinary Shares, mergers,
demergers and dissolutions with respect to the company and

PTT Post, certain capital expenditures, certain dividends and
distributions and certain amendments to the articles of association
and the articles of association of PTT Post.inﬂuding any
amendments to the articles of association with respect to (i)

a modification of the objects clause that relates to performance
of the concession obligations, (i} the creation of new classes of
shares, profit sharing certificates or other securities entitling the
holder thereof to the earnings and/or shareholders’ equity of the
company, (iii) the cancellation of the Special Share, (iv} the
cancellation of the Preference Shares A (as defined below) and
Preference Shares B (a5 defined below), (v) the transfer of the
Special Share, {vi) the determination of the number of members of
the Supervisory Board, (vii) the appointment of three members of
the Supervisory Board by the Minister of Transport, PublicWorks
and Water Management and (viii) the amendment of the rights
attached to the Special Share.

Option to acquire Preference Shares A
With a view to the State’s general interest in the company, the
company has granted the State an option to acquire Preference
Shares A, par value NLG | (Preference Shares A), which will have
the same voting rights as Ordinary Shares, in order to increase
its voting interest in the company to 5| percent in certain
circumstances. The State committed itself to exercising this option
only to safeguard the general interest {which would include
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preventing, to the maximum extent possible, a third party from
acquiring shareholder influence in a general meeting of
shareholders that might possibly damage such general interest)
and not solely 1o protect the company from, or with the additional
purpose of protecting the company from, shareholder influence
unwanted by the company. The issuance of Preference Shares A
does not preclude the issuance of Preference Shares B, which may
represent greater voting rights than Preference Shares A issued.

Long-term equity interest and option to

purchase Preference Shares A
The State has confirmed to the company its intentions not to
reduce its interest in the voting capital to [ess than one third,
plus the Special Share, before 2004. In addition, the State has
been granted the option to subscribe for Preference Shares A
{described above) during or after an increase in the share capital
of the company in order to preserve voting rights equal to a
minimum of ane-third of the company's voting capital. The State
has been granted this option in order to allow it to maintain
one-third of the voting rights without having to restrict the
company’s ability to issue Ordinary Shares. As mentioned above,
the State has committed itself to exercising this option enly to
safeguard the general interest and not solely to protect the
company from, or with the additional purpose of protecting the
company from, shareholder influence unwanted by the company.
The State has agreed that, after its equity interest is reduced to
one-third of the voting capital of the company, it will not without
the consent of the company transfer or encumber any shares
before having agreed with the company to protective measures to
be included in the articles of association,

ln addition, pursuant to the articles of association, the
Minister of Transport, Public Works and Water Management has
the right to appoint three of the seven to nine members of the
Supervisory Board.

The State as creditor
At the time of the demerger from KPN, TPG was assigned two
toans:a loan that was previously granted by the State to KPN
amounting to NLG 90 million and a subordinated loan granted by
the State to KPN amounting to NLG 69 million.

The TPG Protection Foundation and

Preference Shares B
The TPG Protection Foundation {the Foundation) was formed to
care for the interests of TPG, the enterprises connected
therewith and all interested parties, such as shareholders and
employees, by, among other things, preventing as much as possible
influences which would threaten the continuity, independence and
identity of TPG contrary to such interests. The Foundation is an
independent legal entity and is not owned or controlled by any
other legal person.

Agreements have been concluded between TPG and the
Foundation for the placement of Preference Shares B.

The independent members of the board of the Foundation
are H.B.van Liemt (¢hairman), J.J.M. Maeijer (deputy chairman),
O. Hattink and L. Koopmans. A.Maas, chairman of the TPG
Supervisory Board, is also a Foundation board member. TPG and
the members of the board of the Foundation share the view that
the Foundation is independent of TPG in the sense referred to
in Appendix X of the Listing Rules of the Amsterdam Stock
Exchange.

Subsequent events

Personnel option plan
Following the demerger, the TPG Board of Management decided
with the approval of the Supervisory Board to offer TPG
employees working in the Netherlands under the collective labor
agreement a one-time opportunity to participate in a personnel
option plan.

The plan contains a vesting period of three years and options
lapse five years after granting. The exercise price for an option on
one TPG Ordinary Share is equal to the opening price of one TPG
Ordinary Share on the Amsterdam Stock Exchange at the date the
option was granted.

At January 4, 1999, options on approximately 2.3 million
Ordinary Shares had been granted under the personnel option
plan with an exercise price of EUR 27.70.The company intends to
issue Ordinary Shares upon exercise of the options.

Jet Services
In December 1998, TPG commenced the acquisition of Jet Services
in France by acquiring 100 percent of the shares for an amount of
FRF 2,000 million (NLG 672 million}. On February 15, {999, the
European Commission announced its decision not to oppose
TPG’s acquisition of et Seryices. On March 11,1999, the
acquisition was completed.

With headquarters in Lyon, Jet Services is a leading company
and pioneer in domestic express in France. In 1997 (financial year
ending March 31, 1998), based on French GAAP net sales
amounted to FRF 1,963 million (NLG 660 million}. Operating and
net income amounted to FRF 55 million (NLG {8 milfion) and
FRF 25 million (NLG 8 million}, respectively. Total assets
amounted to FRF 1,067 million {NLG 359 million}.

Total revenue is expected to reach nearly FRF 3,000 million
{NLG 1,000 million) in 1999. The acquisition of Jet Services is
expected to have no imfact in 1999 and to begin contributing
thereafter.

Tecnologistica
Provided the European Commission does not oppose the
transaction, TPG will acquire Tecnologistica, a logistics company in
ftaly, for an amount of ITL 145 billion (NLG 165 million). Based on
Italian GAAP, net sales amounted to ITL 645 billion {NLG 734
million} at December 31, 1997, Operating income and net income
amounted to ITL 40 billion (NLG 46 million) and {TL 65 billion
negative (NLG 74 million negative), respectively. Total assets
amounted to ITL 477 billion (NLG 543 million). The acquisition of
Tecnologistica is expected to have no impact in 199% and will begin
contributing as of 2000.
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Management profile

Supervisory Board

J-.M.T. (James) Cochrane (1944)
Present position: Executive director Glaxo Wellcome plc,
responsible for Europe, the Middle East and Africa
Former positions: Various positions in Wellcome plc
Number of shares: 0
Supervisory board membership: Non-executive Director of British
Pharma Group Limited
Nationality: British
Appointed: June 1998
Term expires: 2002

W, (Wim) Dik ([939)
Present position: Chairman of the Board of Management of
Royal KPN N.V.
Former positians: State Secretary for Foreign Trade, Chairman of
the Board of Nederlandse Unilever Bedrijven B.V.
Number of shares: 0
Supervisory board memberships: Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of the Né%her!ands Bureau of Tourism,Van Ganzewinkel
Group (Waste Management) and of Unisource N.V,, member of
the Supervisory Board of Ohra Nuts Insurance Group, ABN
AMRO Bank N.V,, Holland Casines Foundation and Coffee and
Tea Blender De Drie Mollen
Nationality: Dutch
Appointed: June 1998
Term expires: 1999

V. (Victor) Halberstadt (1 939)
Present positions: Professor of Public Finance Leiden University
Crown-member Social Economic Council
Chairman, International Advisory Board, Daimler Chrysler AG
Member, International Advisory Group, Goldman Sachs & Co.
Member, Investment Committee, ABP Pension Fund
Former position: Presidenc, International Institute of Public
Finance _
Number of shares: 0
Supervisory board memberships: Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Xerox (Nederland} B.V. and Xerox Manufacturing
(Nederland) B.V., member of the Supervisory Board of Royal
KPN N.V.and member of the Supervisory Board of
Concertgebouw N.V.
MNationalicy: Dutch
Appointed: June 1998
Term expires: 1999

J.H.M. (Jan) Hommen (1943)
Present position: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Royal Philips Electronics N.V.
Former position: Executive Vice Prestdent and Chief Financtal
Officer of the Aluminum Company of America (Alcoa) in
Pittsburgh, USA
Number of shares: 0

Supervisory board memberships: Member of the Supervisory
Board of Origin B.V.and Allendale Insurance Company
Nationality: Dutch

Appointed: )June 1998

Term expires: 2001

A, (Arie) Maas (1934) Chairman
Former position: Chairman of the Board of Management of N.V.
Koninklijke Bijenkorf Beheer KBB
MNumber of shares: 0
Supervisory board memberships: Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Content Beheer N.V,, member of the Supervisory Board
of Heineken N.V,, KLM Royal Dutch Airlines N.V.,, De Nationale
Investeringsbank N.V,,and Vendex N.V.
Nationality: Dutch
Appointed: June 1998
Ferm expires: 2000

C.l.{Coen) Qort {1928)
Fermer positions: Member of the Board of Management of
Algemene Bank Nederland N.V,, Treasurer-General and Professor
of Economics
Number of shares: 0
Supervisory board memberships: Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of BCE International Ho[dingsjB.V., KLM Royal Dutch
Airlines M.V.and Rabeco Groep, member of the Supervisary
Board of Royal KPN N.V,, Northern Telecom International Finance
B.V., Royal Philips Electronics N.V., and BCE Tele-Direct
Publications International B.V.
Naticnality: Dutch
Appointed: June 1998
Term expires: 2000

R.W.H. (Rolf) Stomberg (1940)
Present positions: Chairman of John Mowlem & Company plc.
Non-exacutive Director of Smith & Nephew ple, Cordiant
Communications ple, Proudfoot plc, Reed international plc,and
Reed Elsevier plc. Chairman of the Board of Unipoly S.A.
Luxembourg. Member of the Supervisory Board of Scania AB,
Sédertilje, Sweden, and Member of the Supervisory Board of

Stinnes AG., Miilheim-Ruhr, Germany. Chairman of the Supervisory.

Board of Deutsche BP Holding AG.

Former positions: Managing Director on the Board of British
Petroleurn Company plc and Chief Executive of BP Oil
International

Number of shares: 0

Nationality: German

Appointed: June 1998

Term expires: 2002

M. (Morris) Tabaksblat (1937) Yice Chairman
Present position: Chairman of the Board of Management
of Unilever N.V.
Former positions:Various positions at Unilever N.V.
Number of shares: 0
Supervisory board memberships: Member of the Supervisory
Board of AEGON N.V., Elsevier N.V.and VEBA AG, Director of
Reed Elsevier PLC
Nationality: Dutch
Appointed: June 1998
Term expires: 2001

J.{Jeroen) Brabers (1953), Secretary
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Board of Management Business Unit Vice Presidénts
A.J. (Ad) Scheepbouwer {1944) F.(Fred) Beljaars
Ad Scheepbouwer is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of AirfRoad Network Europe
TPG. From 1989 until the june 1998 demerger of TPG from KPN,
Scheepbouwer served as president of PTT Post. He has served as C.S.(Simone) Bos
a member of the board of management of KPN since 1992. Before PTT Post International & Consumers
joining PTT Post, Scheepbouwer was president of the Pandair
Group, a division of Pakhoed Holding. He now serves as a member R.{Roger) Corcoran
of the supervisory board of Royal KPN N.V.and Vedior N.V,, and TNT International Express
chairman of the supervisory board of Postkantoren B.V,,a joint
venture between TPG and ING. J. {Jim) Davidson
Number of shares: 0 . TNT North America Logistics
M.P. (Peter) Bakker (1961) P. (Philip) Dobbenberg

Peter Bakker is Chief Financial Officer of TPG. He joined PTT Post  PTT Post Media Service
in 1991 and was appointed financial director of its Parcels business

unit in [993. He was appointed financial control director of PTT H.M.{Harry) Koorstra
Post in 1996 and became a member of the board of management PTT Post Letters
of PTT Post in 1997. Before joining PTT Post, Bakker worked for .
TS Seeds Holdings. J.C. (Hans) Hokke -
Number of}hares: 4] TNT Benelux
L.T.(Bert) van Doorn (1939) A.D. (Alan) Jones.
Bert van Doorn is TPG's Executive Vice President Mail. He has TNT United Kingdom
worked for PTT Post since 1960, holding various staff and line
i positiens, including vice president of the Letters business unit. Th.(Theo) Jongsma
Number of shares: 0 : TNT International Mail
J.A. (John) Fellows (1945) P.H. (Pieter) Kunz
Jobhn Fellows is TPG’s Executive Vice President Express. He joined PTT Post Document Handling
GD Express Worldwide in 1992 and was appointed chief executive '
officer in 1994, Before joining GD Express Worldwide, Fellows K.S. (Ken) McCall
held various positions with Canada Post Corporation over a nine- TNT Asia
year period and with Canadian National Railways over an | |-year
period. R.A.S. (Roberto) Rossi
Number of shares: ¢ TNT Scuth Europe
C.M.(Carel) Paauwe (1939) V.{Yinzenz) Wagner
Carel Paauwe is TPG's Executive Vice President Logistics. He is TNT Germany
also responsible for corporate strategy and business development.
Before joining TPG in April 1998, he was senior director of J. (James) Wilson
McKinsey & Company, where he served for more than 25 years, TNT Auscralia

most recently leading the firm’s worldwide transpertation
practice.
Number of shares: 0

A.C.{Anette) Bordes {1962), Corporate Secretary




information for shareholders

. Through its investor relations initiatives, TPG aims to provide its Three days later, on June 29, TPG was listed on the Amsterdam,
. Thro . .

hareholders with accurate and timely information, thus ensuring New York, London and Frankfurt stock exchanges.
. gha .

cthe compaﬂ)('s adequate presence in the financial world. To this

end. TPG proactively and openly communicates with insticutional Growth, both organic and through acquisitions, is central to
and private investors and with intermediary groups, such as TPG's strategy. Since the listing, TPG has made several acquisitions.
analysts and financial journalists. In September, Tesselaar Marketing Services, a Dutch call-center
company specializing in direct marketing and direct mail response
Means handling, was acquired. In October, TPG took over Rinaldi, an Italian
. TPG holds regular roadshows, one-on-one presentations and domestic mail provider. A few weeks later, in November, GMA,
other meetings with investors. In addition to its annual and a German company that distributes unaddressed mail, magazines
half-year reports. TPG publishes Share,a quarterly magazine and direct mail was purchased. Also in November, TPG acquired

distributed 1o more than (00,000 private shareholders and other  Spedimace, an ltalian company specializing in the transport and
interested readers in the Netherlands. Another important channel  installation of electronic equipment, such as photocopiers. The year
for financial and general information is the TPG corporate website  ended with the December announcement of TPG's acquisition of
(www_mcpost.com).where press releases, corporate presentations  Jet Services,a French domestic express company.

and speeches, as well as the curreat share price and a host of

other information on the company and is presented.Visitors to the Dividend po lic Y ;

website can subscribe to Share or to regular e-mail updates about  In September, TPG paid an interim dividend of NLG 0.30 g

the company or special TPG-related subjects. (EUR 0.136). The 1998 dividend will be set at NLG C.80 ;

. (EUR 0.363) per Ordinary Share of NLG | par value. The final 1998 .

An exciting year dividend will therefore be NLG 0.50 (EUR 0.227). The final dividend £

1998 was an exciting year for TPG and consequently for its will be payable from June 7, 1999, Shareholders may elect to receive %

investor relations activities. The first half year was dominated by the dividend either in cash or in Ordinary Shares. The value of c

activities aimed at introducing TPG to financial target groups in the  the dividend paid in shares will be 2 percent to 5 percent lower v

run-up to the demerger from KPN and the subsequent listing of than the value of the cash dividend. e

TPG as an independent company. Many meetings were held by

members of the prospective TPG board with investors and TPG intends to pursue a dividend policy that reflects its -

analysts, At the end of April, TPG hosted a group of analysts and expected growth and investment strategy. In the years to come,

financial journalists from all over the world at the official opening  TPG intends to pay a stable dividend of NLG 0.80 (EUR 0.363) per

of the new TNT European Express Center in Liége, Belgium, ordinary share of NLG { par value. During this period,as TPG

expects to grow its business, the intended stable dividend is
KPN's general meeting of shareholders on June 26 resclved expected to result in a pay-out ratio of 30 percent to 35 percent.
to demerge KPN's mail, express and logistics activities to TPG. Pay-out in [998 was 46 percent.

TPG mand relative Amsterdam Stock Exchange mclosing prices

o | |

58 f\ J

50 /"

J
B X W \NllinY% VA
“ : \,,\ N rae

35| /

30

25 |

06‘.‘2?._‘)_8_ .
07.06.98
07.13.98
07.20.98
07.27.98
08.02.98
08.10.98
48,17.98
08.24.98
08.31.98
09.07.98
09.14.98
09.21.%8
09.28.98
110.05.98
“_.I.q.|2.98
10.19.98
10.26.98
11.02.98
11,09.98
I1.16.98
11.23.98
11.30.98
12.07.98
12.14.98
12.21.98
12.30,98

1998 tne post group annuzl report 83




May 6
May 10

May 31

June 7

August 31
September 2

September 21|

J P

1999 Financial calendar

Annual general meeting of shareholders
Ex-dividend listing of TPG shares

Starting date for electing form of payment of
final dividend

Closing date for stating preference for final
dividend payment options

Announcement of the final dividend in shares
(after the close of trading on the Amsterdam
Stock Exchange)

Payment of dividend and start of delivery of shares
in connection with stock dividend conversion
Announcement of [999 half-year results
Ex-dividend listing of TPG shares

Starting date for electing form of payment of the
interim dividend

Closing date for stating preference for interim
dividend payment options {before the close of
trading on the Amsterdam Stock Exchange)

September 27 Payment of dividend and starc of delivery of shares

™ in connection with stock dividend

R4

Contact

Bert Stok, Director [nvestor Relations
Tel. +31 20 500 6321

Fax +31 20 500 7515

E-mail bert.stok@tntpost.com

Mail address:

TPG Investor Relations
P.O.Box 13000

1100 KG Amsterdam
The Netherlands

" Visiting address:

Neptunusstraat 41-63
2132 JA Hoofdderp
The Netherlands

Internet address:
www.tntpost.com
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TPG's state of readiness

TPG has been actively working on the Year 2000 date problem
since 1997 and is addressing the millennium issue throughout its
whole organization. The work has been organized using a risk-
based project approach. TPG's methadalogy consists of a clear
definition of the scope of the problem and agreed steps to address
the compliance maczer. TPG's key objective is business as usual

and the continuation of quality service to customers — before,
during and after the turn of the century.

TPG has adopted for its PTT Post and its TNT entities the
approach of forming central and local teams in its business units
and countries worldwide, working to common plans and
standards. The project teams report, through the business units,
to the central millennium department and ultimately, to the
Board of Management of TPG,

The Year 2000 issue is not limited to computer systems.
Other equipment that relies on computer chip technology can
also be influenéed by incorrect date interpretations, with the risk

.of disruptions to business processes, That is why TPG's strategy
focuses not only on computer applications, operating systems,

databases and networks, but also on all equipment with embedded
chip technology such as scanners, sorting and weighing equipment,
alreraft, vehicles, office equipment and utilities.

Project plans are in place, together with a monthly reporting
system, to ensure that the key project milestones are being met
throughout the entire organization. The project’s uniform

- reporting structure allows the central team to menitor total

" progress and also share best practices.

Compliance is defined by TPG as follows:
No value for current date will cause any interruption in
operation.
Date-based functionality must behave consistently for dates
prier 1o, during and after the year 2000.
In all interfaces and data storage, the century in any date must
be specified either explicitly or by unambiguous algorithms or
inferencing rules.
Year 2000 must be recognized as a leap year.

TPG has adopred a six-step approach to achieve Year 2000
compliance. These steps are:

* Strategy and awarcness

A strategy and planning process was putin place at an early

+ $tage and built around a formal project approach. It was also
decided to communicate with and involve key staff, customers
and suppliers in dealing with the problem. This phase was

completed successfully during the middle of 1998.
ldentification

TPG is compiling (and in the case of the IT systems, has

compiled) a full list of those objects and systems that may be

affected by Year 2000. The identification phase was 90 percent
complete at the end of 1998.
Assessment

Based on this identification, TPG is assessing which objects and

Systems are affecred by Year 2000 and then prioritizing these for

Ction i . . .
based on their importance for business continuity. This

Phase has haen 90 percent completed.
Remed

atcn
This i .
%18 the action process by which TPG will fix. upgrade,
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Appendix | —Year 2000 issue

replace or retire the object or system primarily based on
structural changes and some temporary measures. The
remediation phase was 80 percent completed by the end of
the first quarter of [999.

+ Testing
After remediation, key systems will be thoroughly tested against
the relevant Year 2000 dates to confirm that they are Year 2000
compliant and that they work correctly for current date
processing. The progress of the testing phase is in line with the
implementation. )

* Implementation

" Covers the re-introduction of the Year 2000 compliant object

or system, back into the live day-to-day TPG business processes.
The implementationfcompliance phase is planned to be
completed by July 31, 1999. TPG expects that 90 percent of
its businesses will be millennium compliant by this date.
The remaining parts need two additional months to be fully
Year 2000 compliant. This delay is not considered to be critical

for business continuity. o

The status and local progress of the Year 2000 program is E
formally reported to and reviewed by the Board of Management E
on a monthly basis, &
Contingency planning and formal risk-management '-'jg
techniques will be applied throughout the stages to reduce the g
impact of failure of any part of TPG's process, any key supplier or =
major customer. (See contingency plans.) _'é'
TPG considers key suppliers for business continuity critical ihsg

TPG

to the Year 2000 strategy because those suppliers provide integral
services to TPG's total service provision to its customers and
supply physical assets containing embedded computer technology.
All key suppliers are being approached to demonstrate their
compliance with, and readiness for, the Year 2000. TPG has
established a standard process for assessing general issues of
compliance and readiness, whicht leads to a more rigorous level of
actual testing and verification, where appropriate.

Also, one of the objectives of the program is to ensure there
is an appropriate leve! of general and functional awareness both
internally and externally of the relevant Year 2000 issues through
worldwide communication processes.

Costs to address Year 2000 issue
TPG's cash expenditures and dedicated human resources
investment to address the Year 2000 issues are substantial. Each
part of the organization has taken into account the additional
expenses that might be necessary to make all relevant systems and
objects Year 2000 compliant before the end of this year.

Under Dutch GAAP, an amount of NLG 94 million was
provided in the consolidated annual accounts of TPG for Year
2000 compliance measures at the end of 1998, This amaunt is
expected to cover all anticipated future payments of IT
adjustments and systems for the entire group. in 1998, the cash
expenditures amounted to NLG 44 million, This amount was used
for dedicated sraffing, replacement equipment and extensive test
procedures relating to the Year 2000 project. Under US GAAP, the
expenses to address Year 2000 issues have been expensed as
incurred.
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Risks relating to Year 2000 issue
if potential Year 2000 problems are not addressed, there is a risk
of possible failure of key IT and business systems. However, TPG
recognized the Year 2000 issue early and moved to develop a clear
strategy to deal with the problem. The first identification of
potential problems was made at the beginning of 1997, revealing
that the potential risks fell into a number of general categories,
namely:

« Customer relations
All elements of the transport chain are supported by some
level of technology with the result that any system failure or
problem generated by the Year 2000 may physically interfere
with, or delay, the shipment. TPG is addressing this threat by
ensuring that its core information systems are Year 2000
compliant, Additionally, TPG has mapped the shipment process
flow to identify and seek compliance tests or statements for any
key third-party supplied systems, objects or services that
impact this flow.

TPG makes available standard or personalized customer
interfice technology (CIT) and ED! products to its customers.
Any prbblem; caused by noﬁ-compliant products may have a
direct impact on the customer’s ability to interface with TPG
and/or obtain a wide range of information zbout its transactions
with TPG. If something goes wrong during the electronic
exchange of data, this wilt disrupt the customer’s systems as
well as TPG's.

TPG has approached this issue in two ways. First, 2l new
standard CIT software issued to customers isYear 2000
compliant at December 31, 1998. Second, any existing non-
compliant products already with customers will be identified
and systematically replaced. TPG expects that this second
element will be completed by July 31, 1999,

TPG will be able to invoice customers correctly and ona
timely basis as invoicing is expected to be Year 2000 compliant
by July 1999. -

+ Relations with suppliers
The risk profile is twofold. If something goes wrong during
the electronic exchange of data, this will disrupt the supplier’s
systems as well as TPG's. Millennium activities with regard to
suppliers will therefore be undertaken in mutual consultation.

* IT applications
IT applications refer to dedicated software, packaged software,
operating systems, PC software and software used by
customers for communicating with TPG.

= AT Infrastructure
Relates to mainframes, servers, interfaces, data-networking
equipment and PCs.

» All equipment in the core process with embedded chip
technology

+ Facilities and services

Buildings, elevators. air conditioning, power supplies, electronic
alarm systems.
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The aim is to ensure that all the systems can take TPG into
the next century without disruption. TPG, like other organizations
properly addressing the Year 2000 issue, cannat—guarantee that
there will be an absolutely seamless transition into the new
millennium. TPG, however, has adopted a professional and weli-
supported approach to identifying and eliminating the risks, as wefl
as responding quickly in the event that problems will arise.

Contingency plans
Contingency planning and preparation for possible events outside
TPG's direct control — for example, the failure of key customers,
suppliers or ather third parties — is also under way. The
contingency plans are scheduled to be ready in November 1999,

These plans will include the formaticn of contingency teams.
The task of these teams will be to intervene when the basic
process within a business unit is in danger of failing or has failed.
The activities performed by a contingency team will be set down in
a scenario that provides a clear picture of business-critical
processes and interdependencies. Further, the contingency plans
will include fallback scenarios for critical information systems that
support the primary processes, $uch as acceptance and tracking
and tracing.

Contingency planﬁing is not an issue specific to the Year 2000
problem. Risk management and contingency planning is part of
TPG's normal business processes and {T systems.

While TPG's objective is business as usual over the Year
2000, TPG will have in place a rolling contingency plan which will
address any identified concerns raised in the program, where TPG
determines that there is a potentiaf risk in a key area. TPG does
not gnticipate the need to vary its normal Terms and Conditions
of Carriage for the Year 2000.

Further clean-up management may be required due to the
face that some actions are required to replace temporary
measures by structural selutions after the turn of the century.
All stopgap and temporary measures with respect to soft- and
hardware repairs will have to be replaced by strucwural solutions.
This work will include converting all date changes by means of
windowing techniques, replacing all temporary interface bridges
and making all less important systems millennium-proof,

TPG has in place a comprehensive program to achieve
Year 2000 compliance, as outlined in this Year 2000 disclosure.
TPG believes that it will achieve the project objective, which
is business as usual and the provision of quality services to
customers — before, during and after the turn of the century.ltis
clear, however, that Year 2000 is a unique and complex problem
with many factors outside the reasonable control of TPG (e.g.
the traffic control systems at airports). Therefore, like any
organization, it is not possible to guarantee complete Year 2000
compliance.
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Appendix 2 — Euro

On January 1, 1999, the euro was introduced in the Netherlands
and 10 other member states of the European Monetary Union
(EMU). The introduction of the euro, which is the third phase of
- EMU, means that bilateral conversion rates between the national
crencies of participating EMU countries and the euro became
jrrevocably fixed on January 1,1999.

Management believes that the introduction of the euro will
have 2 beneficial effect an the market risk exposures faced by TPG
In view of the significant proportion of TPG activities undertaken
in the participating EMU countries.

TPG has established an EMU steering committee in order to
. assess the possible impact of changes in relation to the
intreduction of the euro and to prepare TPG for these changes.
with respect to the following matters, this committee adopted

a policy to address the transition _period and to make systems euro

compliant.

Tariffs

_ In general, eurog prices will be a conversion of the local tariffs.

The character of the Mail business in the Netherlands (high
volume with low unit prices) and the franking with stamps make it
necessary, that during the transition period the tariffs will continue
to be based on the local currency. As of January 1,2002, TPG will
Issue stamps with euro amounts, The stamps in Dutch guilders can
be used until June 30,2002, and can be converted to euro stamps
until December 31,2002, ‘

During the transition period, the tariffs in the Express and
Logistic business are also based on local currencies. Management
expects this to change during the transition period. This will
depend en how quickly the market will convert to the euro and
will be evaluated by TPG regularly. The longer-term competitive
implications of the conversion will depend on this evaluation and
the decisions of the Board of Management when and how te align
its domestic and international tariffs.

Commercial/financial transactions
From January 1999, all the customers of TPG in the euro
participating countries have the option to be invoiced either in
euros or local currency. In both situations, TPG can fully meet the

1998 tnc post group annual repore

needs of customers. In addition, the supplier has the choice to
invoice in either local currency or euros. As of April 1, 1999, this is
also possible for suppliers from countries which do not participate
in the euro currency. All required systems modifications related to
the eurc conversion were completed or resolved ultimately at this
date.So far TPG has not encountered major problems and all
systems and processes seem to be euro compliant already.

Communication
TPG informed its customers in the euro participating countries
about the working of the euro through personal contact for the
major accounts and through mailing(s) and/or letters to all other
customers. Furthermore, there was an internal communication
within the company for al! changes to the field.

Treasury
From January 1, 1999, no currency fluctuations will appear within
the currencies of the { | EMU countries that adopted the euro,
thus eliminating the foreign exchange rate risks. The internal
charging, whether in local currency or in euro, will therefore have
no foreign exchange impact. The elimination of foreign exchange
transactions among the EMU currencies is expected to save TPG
transaction margins of approximately NLG 2.5 million per year.

Reporting )
In 1998, the reporting application Hyperion was extended with the
facility to report the group statutory and management accounts in
euro currency. The company has yet to decide when the euro will
be introduced as reporting currency.

Costs
Under Dutch GAAP, an amount of NLG 8 million has been
provided in the consolidated annual accounts of TPG at the end
of 1998. This amount is expected to ¢cover all anticipated future
payments of euro adjustments and systems for the entire group.
In 1998, the cash expenditures amounted to NLG 2 mitlion. This
amount was ysed for dedicated staffing and making systems euro
compliant. - ’ ’

Under US GAAP, the expenses to address euro issues have
been expensed as incurred.

87

i
©
©

e

g

x

M~




If pate
of pos
recogr
stratej
potent
that th
namel

+ Cus
All
feve
prol
with
enst
com
flow
key
imp:

TPC 5y

intei
Any
dire:
and/
with
exch
well

TPG
stant
com)
comy
and 3
elem

TPG

timel

by Ju

+ Relat
The
the e
syste
suppl

IT ap
IT ap
oper;
custo

{T Inf
Relat

equip

All ec
techn

Facilin
Buildi
alarm

Colophon

Published by

TNT Post Group N.V.
PO.Box 13000

1100 KG Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Teiephone + 31 20 500 6000

Fax + 31 20 500 7000

WWW,tNtPost.com

Chamber of Commerce Amsterdam Reg.No.27168968

Design
Studio Anthon Beeke B.V,, Anthon Beeke, Ko Sliggers

Photography
Harry Gruyaert, Magnum Photos
Portraits by Roger Hutchings, Transworid

Lithography
Colorset B.V.

Typeset and printed by
PlantijnCasparie Capelie a/d |Jssel

Bound by

Binderij Hexspoor




